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TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE
OPEN SPACE ADVISORY COMMISS ON
Monday, December 15, 2014
Lower Level Conference Room

Breckenridge Town Hall
150 Ski Hill Road
Call to Order, Roll Call
Discussion/approval of Minutes — November 17, 2014 4

Discussion/approval of Agenda

Public Comment (Non-Agenda Items)

Staff Summary
e Tailor Lode USFS Referra 10
e Monte Cristo Road Plowing Conditional Use Permit Application- Summit County
Referral 16
Open Space
e 2015 State of the Open Space 17
e Field Season Review/Trail Use Data Report
e Town Council Report
e Pro FormaUpdate 27
e Reed Canary Grass Eradication Update 28
e Friends of Dillon Ranger District and Colorado Fourteener’s Initiative Grant
Requests 53, 83

Adjourn

For further information, please contact the Open Space and Trails Program at 970-547-3155 (Scott) or
970-453-3371 (Chris).



Memorandum

To: Breckenridge Open Space Advisory Commission
From: Open Space Staff

Re: December 15, 2014 Meeting

Staff Summary

Tailor Lode USFS Referral

Attached, please find a U.S. Forest Service referral related to a proposed driveway easement
for the Tailor Lode, a 10-acre private mining claim located on the Breckenridge Ski Resort
between Peaks 6 and 7. Also attached is a draft response letter for Mayor Warner’s signature.
Please review the attached documents and let staff know if you have any edits or additions.

Monte Cristo Road Plowing Conditional Use Permit Application

Attached, please find the Town of Breckenridge’s response to a Summit County referral
regarding a Conditional Use Permit application to plow portions of the Monte Cristo Road,
on the southeastern flank of Quandary Peak. An area landowner has requested permission to
plow the road for driveway access and has more recently attempted to deny public access to
an historic County Road and recreational route. The Town’s comment letter speaks for itself
and will be further discussed at the December 18" Summit County Upper Blue Planning
Commission meeting at the County Courthouse. Please review the attached letter and let staff
know if you have comments or questions.

Open Space
2015 State of the Open Space

Attached is the third edition of the State of the Open Space report, which provides detail on
the Town open space program’s successes since the 1996 passage of the open space tax. This
status report is intended to provide an annual update of the program for BOSAC, Town
Council, and the general public. Please review the attached information, listen to the staff
presentation, and answer the following questions:

1. Does BOSAC have any questions regarding the content of the 2015 State of the

Open Space report?
2. Does BOSAC have any edits or changes for the report?

Field Season Review/Trail Use Data Report

Tony Overlock will provide an overview of the Town trail crew’s 2014 field season,
including new trail construction projects, volunteer contributions, and maintenance tasks.
Tony will also summarize the trail use data collected in 2014. Staff requests BOSAC listen to
staff’s presentation and ask any questions that arise.

Town Council Report
Mayor John Warner will outline Town Council’s discussion regarding BOSAC’s program
recommendations for a potential future open space fund surplus.

Pro Forma Update

Recent revisions to the open space pro forma have indicated a fund balance surplus,
primarily due to increased sales tax revenues. At the November meeting, the BOSAC had
a long discussion regarding areas where these surplus dollars could be focused. The
BOSAC identified four focus areas to which they recommended additional expenditures
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be allocated: paydown of debt associated with the B&B property loan, habitat/river
restoration, land acquisitions, and trails construction/Hoosier Pass recpath. Attached for
the BOSAC’s review is a revised open space pro forma that includes four additional
expense line items in bold that address each of these program priorities.

Staff requests BOSAC review the revised pro forma and respond to the following questions:
1. Does BOSAC have any clarifying questions regarding the revised pro forma?
2. Does BOSAC seek any edits to the updated pro forma to better reflect the
program priorities discussed in November?

Reed Canary Grass Eradication Update

Attached is the inaugural report on the reed canary grass eradication effort in Cucumber
Gulch Preserve. As BOSAC knows, 2015 was the first of a five-year plan to remove this
invasive species in the area, along with several other noxious weeds. Given the restrictions
on the use of herbicides in Cucumber Gulch Preserve, the reed canary grass eradication
effort is planned to occur via manual removal over a five-year period (i.e. mowing and
digging up of root mass). If successful, the eradication project will also serve as model
research for other entities seeking to eradicate reed canary grass without using herbicides.

The attached report indicates reasonable progress in the first year of the eradication effort, as
well as the need to continue the mowing, digging, and reseeding efforts for several more
years to accomplish the objective.

Staff requests BOSAC review the attached report and answer the following questions:
1. Does BOSAC have any clarifying questions regarding the attached report?
2. Does BOSAC want to amend the current direction and expenditure plan
regarding the reed canary grass eradication effort?

Friends of Dillon Ranger District and Colorado Fourteener’s Initiative Grant Requests
In 2014, BOSAC recommended providing grant support for two trail-based volunteer
organizations to support work in the Upper Blue basin. The Friends of Dillon Ranger District
(FDRD) received $10,000 to complete several trail maintenance projects in the Upper Blue
basin related to trails of interest to the Town (e.g. Peaks, Mountain Pride, Pinball Alley,
Quandary Peak, and Colorado Trails). Attached is a memo outlining the grant-related work
completed by FDRD in 2014. Also, the Colorado Fourteener’s Initiative (CFI) received
$1,000 in 2014 for peak steward volunteer projects on heavily-traveled Quandary Peak. Both
of these grants were reviewed by BOSAC and recommended for approval. The Town
Council grants committee then approved BOSAC’s recommendation

Attached are two trail-related grant requests from FDRD and CFI for 2015. Both applications
are similar to 2014, and have increased in amount ($12,000 and $2,500, respectively). Please
review the attached applications and come to the meeting prepared to discuss them.
BOSAC'’s final recommendations regarding these applications will be reviewed for approval
by the Town Council grants committee.

1. Does BOSAC have any questions regarding the two grant applications?

2. What is BOSAC’s consensus recommendation regarding these two grant

requests?

30f138



Town of Breckenridge November 17, 2014
Breckenridge Open Space Advisory Commission

Roll Call

Jeff Cospolich called the November 17, 2014 BOSAC mesting to order at 5:40 pm. Other BOSAC
members present included Chris Tennal, Elisabeth Lawrence, Jeffrey Bergeron and Elizabeth Miller.
Jeff Carlson arrived at 6:00 pm. Staff members present were Peter Grosshuesch, Scott Reid, Mark
Truckey and Chris Kulick. Brian Lorch and Jason Lederer from Summit County Open Space and
Trails and Breckenridge resident Blaize Panariso were also in attendance.

Approval of Minutes
The minutes were approved as presented.

Public Comments
There were no public comments.

Staff Summary
Field Season Update
The summer field season is amost complete and seasonal trail crew members are wrapping up the
final open space and trails tasks. Recently completed projects include:
o Findize and sign ZL Trail for the year.
Repair Slalom Trail from brake bumps and logging impacts.
Complete interpretive spur and primary route on Wirepatch Trail.
Remove wooden features adjacent to pump track.
Remove hazard trees along French Gulch routes.
Install gates and signs and clean up Laurium and Candler open space properties.

2014 has been another highly productive year for the trail crew. A fina report summarizing this
year's projects and volunteer initiatives will be presented to BOSAC in December.

Mr. Bergeron — | might be a good idea to erect some educational signage on yielding for higher use
trails. The message needs to be that downhill traffic should yield to uphill traffic and not just ride
around the person and widen the trail.

Mr. Bergeron — When will the excavation of the Laurium trail head happen? (Mr. Reid — We are still
hoping to complete the trail head improvements this year.)

Ms. Lawrence — When will the clean-up of the cabins on the Laurium take place? (Mr. Reid — Most
of the work drying-in the cabins was aready completed. The dilapidated cabin on the hill has been
closed off with Keep Out signs and a buck-and-rail fence.)

Forest Health Projects Update

lowa Hill tree remova work is complete and the lowa Hill Trail has reopened. Two small fuel
reduction projects in the Highlands area (along the Middle Flume Trail) were aso recently
undertaken; one is already complete and the other will be finished in spring 2015 due to weather
concerns and sensitive soils.

The larger scae Golden Horseshoe open space forest health projects have begun in earnest. The
planned tree removal projects near the Preston Townsite have concluded, as have the tree removal
projects on the adjacent National Forest |lands. Together, these projects should diversify the area age-
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Town of Breckenridge November 17, 2014
Breckenridge Open Space Advisory Commission

class structure and species composition while also providing defensible space for area homes and
public infrastructure. The final open space cutting unit to be addressed is aong Rac Jac Way above
Summit Estates. Work has begun on this 25-acre unit and is scheduled to be completed by year's
end.

Open Space
Town Council Budget Retreat Follow Up

On October 28", Council held its annual budget retreat to discuss the 2015 town budget, including
the open space fund. In general, Town Council approved the 2015 budget as previously presented to
BOSAC. However, Council aso requested BOSAC evauate potential future budget surplusesin the
pro forma and prioritize ways to address Town open space goals with these potential surplus funds.
Specificaly, Town Council highlighted early debt retirement, property acquisition, and river
restoration as priority open space program goals to be addressed via the open space fund.

Councilmember Lawrence updated the BOSAC on the Town Council budget retreat. She
highlighted accessible, close-in open space, river restoration and trail improvements on McCain and
paying down debt as Council’ s identified priorities.

In addition, the Open Space Plan also prioritizes stewardship efforts to be undertaken by the
program as follows:

o Natural resource efforts (including protection of open space values, ecological restoration,
environmental enhancement, education and interpretation, forest heath management, and
monitoring)

o Recreation efforts (including trails, trailheads, signage and small structures)

e Other activities (including invasive species eradication, scenic backdrop maintenance, storm water
treatment, developed recreation facilities, and historical resource protection).

Mr. Bergeron — Has there been any thought of the repercussions of breaking up the flow of Main St.
with the park? (Ms. Lawrence — No, if anything, there was discussion of regret that there haven't
been more in-Town open space purchases.)

Mr. Cospolich — What about restrooms at the park? (Ms. Lawrence — Currently, we did not pursue
restrooms because of historic land marking eligibility issues on the Carter Museum property.)

Ms. Lawrence — Much of McCain is designated for open space and we are still trying to decide how
to best program it. There is a possibility of a bike park like Frisco’s because we will have the funds
and it would make that open space parcel more accessible to the general public.

Mr. Grosshuesch — In the near future we will continue to pursue grants to help develop the parks on
Block 11.

Mr. Carlson — We have to juggle many issues but river restoration is very high on my list. Istherea
possibility to restore the Blue River behind City Market? (Ms. Lawrence — That is desirable but it
may have to wait for a private redevel opment of City Market due to land ownership issues.)

Mr. Bergeron — River restoration is a feel-good topic but we could spend the whole fund in
perpetuity on all the sections that need treatment; it may get overwhelming in a hurry. We need to
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Town of Breckenridge November 17, 2014
Breckenridge Open Space Advisory Commission

seek a good balance. (Mr. Grosshuesch — Large-scale river restorations are manageable if we
compl ete restorations section by section.)

Mr. Cospolich — I can’t highlight my priorities without really studying the pro-forma more in-depth.

Ms. Miller — Isthere ever any reason keep alittle bit in reserve for leaner times? (Mr. Grosshuesch —
Even in down years, the open space fund still has money to spend and the Town's general
philosophy is there is no reason to keep a fund balance. The money should be utilized to meet the
open space program goals.)

BOSAC — Recommended adding a “habitat restoration” line item (to include river restoration and
other habitat repair work) to the pro-forma because several river restoration projects are anticipated
over the next severa years.

Mr. Tennal — | have an issue with adding too much development on the McCain property whether it
be recreation or commercial. McCain is our Town’s gateway and it should remain more passive
open space. (Mr. Carlson — | was aso under the impression that McCain would mainly be passive
open space.) (Mr. Truckey — 30% of McCain is set aside as open space (based on the 30% open
space contribution to the purchase price) but the remainder of the site will have to accommodate
other Town/public uses such as parking and snow storage.) (Mr. Grosshuesch — The stretch of river
through McCain has high wildlife conservation values. It serves as awildlife corridor.)

Ms. Miller — | hope the McCain river stretch looks like the Four Mile Bridge stretch of reclamed
river, which turned out really well.

Mr. Cospolich — It appears the Town Council seeks to better accommodate visitors on our open
space which might mean its time amend the open place plan. Currently, the plan speaks more to the
community and less to attracting and retaining visitors.

Ms. Lawrence — | don't think that’s really the case. It seems that Council supports the open space
program and wants to see the funds expended to benefit the public. In general, the closer to town the
project and more accessible to users, the better.

Mr. Bergeron — My priorities are 1. wildlife habitat, 2. paying down the debt, 3. natural resources
Mr. Carlson — | second Mr. Bergeron’s priorities.

Ms. Miller — Can we look at the pro-forma with a couple different allocation scenarios? That may be
helpful in establishing our priorities. (Mr. Truckey — Yes, we can provide a couple different
scenarios for the December meeting.)

Mr. Cospolich — Are we till comfortable with adding only $25,000 for trail maintenance

considering were adding more miles of trail? It seems like this would be a good place to expend any
surplus funds.
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Town of Breckenridge November 17, 2014
Breckenridge Open Space Advisory Commission

Mr. Bergeron — | think it would be worthwhile to reacquaint ourselves with the open space
program’s mission statement and the Open Space Plan as a whole. (Ms. Miller — Read the Mission
Statement.)

Mr. Cospolich — We should consider allocating some funds to the Hoosier Pass Bike Path too.

BOSAC — A general consensus was reached that the following four program priorities should be
addressed with the growing fund balance: Land acquisitions, trail construction/maintenance, early
retirement of debt service, and “habitat restoration” (including river restoration). Staff was asked to
present a revised pro formato BOSAC in December reflecting scenarios in which additional funds
are spread between those priorities. The recommendations from those discussions could then be
presented to Town Council.

Swan River Restoration Project Discussion

As previoudly discussed with BOSAC, work on the Swan River restoration project has been ongoing
for several years. The project, intended to recreate a functioning river and riparian corridor in a
formerly dredged landscape, is focused on joint Town/County open space property, National Forest
lands, and private property in the Swan River valley. The long-term goa is to reestablish a
circuitous, above-ground river that supports riparian vegetation and, ultimately, a meta-population
of the Colorado River cutthroat trout.

A coadlition including representatives from the Blue River Watershed Group, U.S. Forest Service,
Summit County Government, Town of Breckenridge, Trout Unlimited, Friends of Dillon Ranger
Didtrict, L.G. Everist, private landowners, and others has been formed to establish a vision and
execute the Swan River restoration plan. This group has been meeting monthly and is moving into a
more active fundraising and river restoration mode.

To date, the Swan River restoration project has involved acquiring valley bottom open space lands,
designing a general river restoration plan, removing dredge piles to establish rough grades, placing a
topsoil cover, and reseeding the site. The 2014 goal, to which BOSAC and Town Council
committed $30,000 of open space funds, was to realign Muggins Gulch Road to avoid wetlands,
install afish barrier and box culvert, and enhance river function by reducing the number of road
crossings. Unfortunately, this project did not come to fruition in 2014. Instead, the coalition opted to
include the Muggins Gulch Road realignment concept in a broader Phase 1 restoration to include
3,500 feet of new river restoration on the joint Town/County open space properties. The estimated
$2 million project would complete a portion of the restoration vision and provide a model for future
upstream restoration on open space, private property and National Forest lands.

To accomplish Phase 1 of the Swan River restoration project, the coalition is pursuing funding from
all available sources. Currently, Summit County Government has committed $200,000 in Denver
Water settlement funds and $300,000 from the recently passed 1A fund, totaling $500,000. Grants
are also being pursued from multiple grant sources, including the Colorado Watershed Conservation
Board, EPA Brownfields program, Climax Molybdenum, and Fishing is Fun. The Town of
Breckenridge previously committed $30,000 to the 2014 Muggins Gulch road realignment project
which was not completed. BOSAC should anticipate Summit County staff and other coalition
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Town of Breckenridge November 17, 2014
Breckenridge Open Space Advisory Commission

members requesting additional funds from the Town open space program to help cover restoration
costs and demonstrate the Town’ s support for the Swan River restoration project.

Brian Lorch of Summit County Open Space presented detailed information on Phase 1 of the Swan
River restoration project, including a budget, map of the overall restoration effort, and a list of
funding sources. It was noted during the discussion by Town staff that BOSAC should keep in mind
that other potential river restoration efforts on McCain, Block 11, and potentialy even French
Gulch, are closer geographically to Town and will likely also require open space funding in the
coming years.

Mr. Truckey — It is assumed any additional funding from the Town of Breckenridge will come from
the Open Space fund. Will Summit County’s Open Space fund contribute anything on top of the
County’s 1A contribution? (Mr. Lorch — The County’s contribution will come from 1A funds, not
the open space fund. In the past, open space has contributed to many river restoration projects.)

Mr. Bergeron — Will the restoration design be an improvement for fisherman? (Mr. Lorch — Yes,
there is a trail designed into the plan on the south side of the river. There are also parking areas
retained to ensure angler access.)

Mr. Carlson — Phase 1 of the restoration began this summer? (Mr. Lorch — Yes, but we are now in a
fundraising mode to complete the remaining design for 3,500 linear feet of realigned river.)

Mr. Truckey — Since this is a big project, one thought is to get your general feelings for the project
tonight and then come back with some updated figures to the proposed river restoration line item.

Mr. Cospolich — | agree with Mark’ s suggestion to come back and review it in the larger context of
the pro forma.

Mr. Reid — Remember aso that timing will be very important. Any French Gulch project would be
years away, but McCain and the Swan River project are both scheduled to really start in 2015. How
much funding will be important, but so too will be the timing of those expenditures.

BOSAC expressed support for this restoration project and looks forward to a pro forma review in
December.

BOSAC Retreat Discussion

BOSAC reviewed their October 29" retreat at Sky Mountain Park near Aspen. Staff members from
Pitkin County Government, the City of Aspen, and the Town of Snowmass Village guided BOSAC
members and staff on a mountain bike tour of the trailsin Sky Mountain Park and discussed
governmental partnership models, seasonal closures, dog prohibitions, trail design and construction,
and open space management planning. The discussions were wide-ranging and fruitful, and provided
staff with insight on how other open space programs accomplish similar goals.

BOSAC members shared their perspectives on the retreat, including lessons learned and ideas for
future retreat locations and topics.
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Town of Breckenridge November 17, 2014
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Ms. Miller — It was interesting to see their land use issues such as equestrian interaction and winter
wildlife habitat.

Mr. Cospolich — The location of the Skyline trails was good because it was convenient for the down
valley commuters. Overall, what we saw was areally good design and programming of open space.

Ms. Miller — For future field trips | think we should look at programs that are more on the same scale
as us. In that regard, the Aspen trip was a good choice.

Mr. Carlson — Due to its long history and broad range of use issues, Jefferson County might be
interesting to check out.

Mr. Tenna — It might be interesting to go somewhere and look at in-Town open space acquisition
issues and river restoration project examples.

Mr. Bergeron — Is Salida too small? They seem to be doing a nice job with their trails.

Mr. Reid — Steamboat might be a good option as well because they are relatively close, have a
partnership model similar to ours, and the Emerald Mountain area has improved tremendously in the
past few years.

BOSAC will evaluate options for a spring and/or fal site visit to another open space program.
Executive Session

Mr. Bergeron — Motioned to move into Executive Session at 8:21 pm to discuss property acquisition
negotiations.

Mr. Carlson — seconded the motion.

Mr. Cospolich — Made a motion to come out of Executive Session at 8:37 pm. Mr. Carlson seconded
the motion.

Next M eeting
The next regularly scheduled meeting is on Monday, December 15, 2014, at the Breckenridge Town
Hall, 150 Ski Hill Road.

Mr. Tennal motioned to adjourn the meeting, which was seconded by Mr. Bergeron.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:37 p.m.

Jeff Cospolich, Chair
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December 29, 2014

Scott Fitzwilliams, Forest Supervisor

c/o Paul Semmer

U.S. Forest Service- Dillon Ranger District
P.O. Box 620

Silverthorne, CO 80498

Dear Mr. Fitzwilliams:

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the scoping notice (dated November 25,
2014) for a proposed driveway easement to access a private, 10-acre mining claim within
the Breckenridge Ski Resort Special Use Permit boundary. The Town of Breckenridge
appreciates the opportunity to offer these comments during the scoping process.

Based on the scoping notice and exhibit, the proponent plans to construct a driveway to
access a potential home site on the Tailor Lode (M S #19959). As stated in the scoping
notice, the U.S. Forest Service (USFS) must provide access for “reasonable use and
enjoyment” of the property, while also designing and approving such access to “minimize
the visual and resource impacts’.

Given that the Tailor Lode will require Summit County backcountry zoning approval to
be developed, we strongly encourage the current USFS driveway review be coordinated
with Summit County Government’s planning review process. Cooperation between both
the USFS and County in the planning phase will ensure that the driveway on National
Forest lands is designed to match the County’s approved site plan and backcountry
Zoning requirements.

The Town of Breckenridge has the following general comments regarding the current
proposal:

e The primary goalsfor this project review should be to minimize site
disturbance, habitat fragmentation, tree clearing, and visibility of the proposed
driveway and home devel opment.

e Generally speaking, using existing on-mountain infrastructure (e.g. ski area
service roads) as much as possibleis preferred. Therefore, utilizing the
“aternate alignment on existing road” highlighted on the scoping map in
yellow is preferable to the primary alignment. Furthermore, evaluating a route
that briefly ascends the Wanderlust Trail from the top of the Zendo Chair
might reduce cut and fill slopes and tree clearing related to the proposed
driveway. Although the scoping notice mentions eval uating the Wanderlust
Trail asadriveway location, does not specify whether this scenario was
evaluated via the top or bottom.

www.townofbreckenridge.com
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e Based onthesite plan, it appears that the proponent’s building site is larger
than necessary and located mid-slope in the center of aforest canopy. We
recommend the proponent consider moving the disturbance area uphill on the
subject parcel to a potentialy flatter building site with a shorter driveway
access (and therefore less tree clearing). The disturbance limits within the
parcel could also be reduced to minimize visibility of the home.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this proposal. If you have any questions or
concerns regarding this letter, please contact Scott Reid at 970-547-3155 or
ScottR@townofbreckenridge.com.

Sincerely,

John Warner, Mayor

www.townofbreckenridge.com
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October 17, 2014

Alan Hanson

Summit County Planning Department
PO Box 5660

Frisco, CO 80443

Dear Mr. Hanson:

The Town of Breckenridge appreciates the opportunity to comment on the Conditional Use
Permit application for plowing on Monte Cristo Road. As you know, the Town has worked
jointly with the County on maintaining public recreational access throughout the Upper Blue
Basin. As such, we request that the applicant strictly adhere to the backcountry plowing
requirements (j.e. 4” of compacted snow remain on the road surface during winter months).
We encourage the applicant and other affected landowners to acknowledge the existence of
this County Road and all the rights implied therein, while accommodating the public
recreational access in the area.

Thanks for your consideration of our comments.  Mark

(//{; - "‘;/ B
/ {;:)»:;J'
Mark T(ngey, AICP
Assistant Director of Community Development

#
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State of the Open Space Report
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Cucumber Guich Preserve
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Open Space Program
At a Glance

1996

Breckenridge voters approve 0.5% sales tax to fund
open space acquisitions & management

$19,300,933

Funds used to date for
open space acquisitions

$11,347,168

Funds contributed by Summit County Government
towards joint purchases of open space

$240,000

Price of the Swan River Placer (AKA, the Sanitation
District Parcel), the program’s first purchase.

148

Size in acres of the Golden Gate Placer, the
first joint purchase with Summit County Open Space

2000

Year the Cucumber Gulch Overlay
Protection District was adopted

1,683

Number of acres jointly purchased with
Summit County through the B&B Mines
acquisition, the program’s largest

6

Number of seasonal Town Trail Crew staff charged with
maintaining the extensive trail network providing
public access to our open space properties

108

Total number of all open space acquisitions

4,544

Total number of acres protected as open space




Open Space Acquisitions

In 1996, a voter initiative passed which dedicated a 0.5% Town sales tax to

open space acquisition and management. In the 18 years since its adoption, the

Town’s open space program has acquired a total of 4,425 acres of property

through purchases, land trades, dedications and joint purchases with Summit
County Government. Of the 4,425 acres, 3,884 acres have been purchased and

541 acres have been acquired through land trades and dedications.

Town & County Jointly ~ Town Purchased
Purchased Acres Acres
Pre-1997 13.68 . Prospector Park
1997 171.55 15.5 (In-Town)
1998 80.81 63.86
1999 153.69 19.33 Did You Know?
2000 34.95 225.67 The majority of open space acquisitions

2001 610.68 10.94 have been located outside of Town limits
2002 87.47 40.05 (3,984 acres out of Town versus 560 acres

in-Town). The development philosophy in
2003 38.72 62.02 the Joint Upper Blue Master Plan has been

2004 99.23 154.83 to focus development in the core of Town
2005 1854.75 2.89 and minimize development in the sur-

2006 0 6.85 rounding backcountry.
2007 64.83 11.19
2008 27.44 3.64 Total Acres
2009 65.58 7.62 of
2010 73.78 0 Open Space
2011 124.29 0
2012 86.25 0
5
0

B Qutof Town

2013 69
2014 196

B |n-Town
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Open Space Comparison 1996 and 2015

Prior to the establishment of the Open Space program in 1997, the Town owned 119 acres of open space. Today, the program
manages 4,544 acres of open space, 3,784 acres of which was jointly acquired with Summit Count Government. A number of the joint
purchases lie just outside the Town boundary.

1996 2015
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Acquisition Expenditures

The Town has spent $19,300,933 on open space acquisitions since the start of the
Open Space Program. Of this amount, $8,358,556 (43%) has been used for
in-Town acquisitions and $10,942,377 (57%) has been used for out of Town

acquisitions.

210f 138

$9,468,556 $8,358,556 $1,110,000
$21,179,545 $10,942,377 $10,237,168
$30,648,101 $19,300,933 $11,347,168 *

*This is total amount Summit County has spent in the Upper Blue Basin. In addition to

the Upper Blue Basin, Summit County purchases open space in its other three basins.

Fairview Placer
(In-Town)

Last Chance Claims
(Out of Town)

Did You Know?

On a price-per-acre basis, in-Town
acquisitions are substantially more
expensive ($59,928 per acre) than out of
Town acquisitions ($5,684 per acre). Of
the 560 in-Town acres acquired, only 158
have been purchased.




Trails

Prior to the establishment of the Open Space program in 1997 the Town managed
10.8 miles of trails. Today the program manages 47.3 miles of multi-use trails.

Aspen Alley Trail

Newly Created Miles of Trails

2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

2004

2003

2002

2001

2000 Did You Know?

1999 In addition to the Town maintained

1998 network of trails, over 100 miles of
1997 & Prior designated trails can be connected to on

nearby National Forest lands. Taken
0 2 4 6 8 10 12 together, this trail network is one of the

largest and most diverse in the country.
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Trail Access

The Open Space program provides 120 trail access
portals located within the Town or within 1/4 mile of
its boundary. The numerous portals provide conven-
ient, legal access to Town-maintained trails.

Did You Know?

80% of all in-Town properties are within 1/4 mile
of a Town maintained trail access portal.
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Other In-Town Properties with  [tesena

Properties with Open Space values

Open Space Values eroperty Type
|:| Open Space
Other community properties not managed by the I Goff Course
open space program offer open space values such as Il Active Park
relief from development, active park space, private |G
open space and visual backdrop. Examples of prop- = :z:zz:"::peny

erties that exhibit these qualities include historical B o
sites, school properties, active parks, and the golf

course. Many of the in-Town open space parcels

were dedicated through the development permit proc-

ess.

Did You Know?

The Town of Breckenridge

owns 23.7% of all property
located within town limits.
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2014 Accomplishments

e 5 New Trail Posts
2014 Forest Health Projects e 4 New Yicld/ Trail

(38 total acres treated) Etiquette Signs

2014 Acquisitions (196 acres) e lowa Hill e 10 New Cucumber

e Candler Lode e Frontier Claims * Preston Seasonal Closure Signs
e City Claims * Highlands (2 parcels) e 5 New Breckenridge

e Monitor #1 Lode e Laurium Property * Rac Jac Way Heritage Alliance
e Planted 500+ seedlings Interpretive Signs.

Laurium Property

Did You Know?

In 2014 Open Space

New Trails & purchased the 104 acre

Realignments .
O G Vsl (3.6 miles) o Turk’s Trail Laurium Property, the

e 3,223 Total Hours e Aspen Alley Trail e Wire Patch Trail program'’s largest single
e $70,150 Value e B-Line Trail ® ZL Trail acquisition since 2005.
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RIDGE OPEN aT’ACE FUND PR|

TOWN OF BRECKEN| D FORMA
Actual Budget Projected | Proposed

EXPENDITURES 2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Comments

Land Acquisitions 827,450 450,000 557,585 465,000 478,950 493,319 508,118 523,362 539,062 555,234 571,891 589,048 |Budget line items 54421 and 53410 $557.585 commited so far in 2014 3% annual growth

Additional Land Acquisitions 80,000 80,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 |$ proposed to be added to the "Land Acquisitions" line item

Main St. Property Acqusition (Bartlett & Main St. park parcels acquisition, paid back to Town General Fund that carried initial

Shock Lots 52 & 53) 200,000 399,996 400,000 350,000 purchase
Wellington/Oro treatment plant costs (53400), including part-time operator (15k for 2014

Welllington/Oro Treatment Plant 180,945 174,005 174,200 174,000 179,220 184,597 190,134 195,839 201,714 207,765 213,998 220,418 |and 2015), and plant replacement fund (11k allocated annually)

Debt Service B&B 297,627 302,402 302,402 301,892 301,244 300,454 299,523 298,988 299,974 149,590 $4.5mil bond @3.5% 20 vrs; based on principal and interest payments scheduled
Reflects accelerated paydown of B&B bond based on $200k extra each year with
payoff in 2021. Current payoff schedule without extra payements is 2026. Line item

Pay off Debt Service 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 55524

Blue River Restoration/McCain stretch 600,000 210,000 480,000 30% of river restoration costs to be shared with capital fund. Total cost $4.3 million
Includes: 1) additional alloction for a 50% total contribution towards the McCain river
restoration project (additional $400k in 2015, $140k in 2016, and $320k in 2017) and 2)
$50k placeholder in 2015-2017 for other restoration projects (e.g., Blue River (behind
Justice Center and elsewhere, Swan River, French Creek) and $100k placeholder for
these projects in subsequent years. Monies not spent will build up in the fund for

Habitat/River Restoration 450,000 190,000 370,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 |future year projects.

Phase 1 of river park improvements in 2015/2016, costs shared with capital fund with
hopes of $350k grant from GOCO. Future phases (placeholdes included in 2018, 2020,
and 2022) would be cost-shared between open space, capital fund, and the housing fund,

Blue River Parks/Block 11 25,000 45,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 also with the potential for grants.

Contribution towards stabilization of Reiling Dredge on Town/County owned open space.
Includes three phases outilned in the recently completed Reiling Dredge Preservation
Master Plan. All phases are still subject to Town/County approval and determination of
what extent of preservation is necessary. Assumes the County and Town share the costs
of the preservation 50/50. 50 % of the Town's contribution would come from the BHA

Reiling Dredge Preservation/Stabilization| 27,500 31,813 47,750 capital fund and the remaining 50% would come from the Open space fund.

51111-51138 (wages and benefits), 52214-53321 (printing and postage), 53372-53374
(training, travel, and BOSAC), 58000 (garage fund) includes 5k for dump truck purchase in
2014, 58020 (facilities fund), 55512 liability insurance, 3% annual growth, 53388-53389

Administration 263,949 324,336 323,522 359,042 369,813 380,908 392,335 404,105 416,228 428,715 441,576 454,824 |(insurance deductibles), 53338 overages

Legal Services 0 5,004 5,000 5,000 5,150 5,305 5,464 5,628 5,796 5,970 6,149 6,334 [53352, Town Attorney time for open space issues, B&B Consent decree followup

Consultants 46,783 79,999 80,000 80,000 82,400 84,872 87,418 90,041 92,742 95,524 98,390 101,342 |53355, 3% annual growth, Cucumber monitoring (water guality, wildlife monitoring)

53359 forest mgmt, weed control, GH forest mgmt/health planning, tree planting, Cucumber

Other professional services/forest mgmt 101,901 102,001 102,000 102,000 105,060 108,212 111,458 114,802 118,246 121,793 125,447 129,211 |Gulch restoration efforts

Other contracted services/surveying 3,200 10,000 8,500 10,000 10,300 10,609 10,927 11,255 11,593 11,941 12,299 12,668 |53399 surveying and appraisals
52229, 52230, 52231, 54426 Town trails and landscape construction, GH trails, Friends of

Trails construction and maintenance 145,756 187,500 187,500 217,500 242,500 267,500 292,500 317,500 342,500 367,500 392,500 417,500 |Breck, $25k annual growth based on increased trail mileage and associated maintenance
Additional allocation towards trails construction and maintenance and/or towards Hoosier

Trails/Hoosier Pass Rec Path 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 |Pass Rec Path

TOTAL EXP 2,067,611 | 2,035,243 | 2,140,709 | 3,466,934 | 2,631,450 | 3,113,524 | 2,597,878 2,561,518 | 2,727,855 2,544,033 2,362,251 2,331,343

REVENUES

Sales Tax 1,985,224 1,961,385 2,320,279 2,363,400 2,387,034 2,410,904 2,435,013 2,459,364 2,483,957 2,508,797 2,533,885 2,559,224 Based on 1% annual growth

Interest 5,343 4,600 9,099 9,490 5,953 3,613 2,634 348 1,085 1,448 2,191 5,057

B&B Land Sales 425,000 |Potential divestiture properties (Peabody and Williams Placers--revenues split with County)
2015 includes: $129,875 for Town's share of TDR proceeds from Peak 8 development and
$9,800 for Beaver Run TDR. 2016 includes 18.3 TDRs for Breck Mountain Lodge
($357,090 for Town's share assuming most (75%) are purchased from TDR Bank). 1 %

TDR Sales 12,610 133,562 9,871 139,675 357,090 10,000 10,100 10,201 10,303 10,406 10,510 10,615 |annual arowth
2014 includes $30.4k for SideDoor state trails grant. 2015 includes $52.5k for DNR forest
mgmt grant (Town share) and $30k for first installment on state trails grant (Turks, etc.,

Grants 12,275 40,450 30,411 82,500 83,325 84,158 85,000 85,850 86,708 87,575 88,451 89,336 |Town's share)

Summit County reimbursement 74,621 82,000 82,000 82,000 84,460 86,994 89,604 92,292 95,060 97,912 100,850 103,875 |Wellington/Oro treatment plant costs, not including replacement fund

Trails map sales 4,568 7,000 7,761 7,000 7,070 7,141 7,212 7,284 7,357 7,431 7,505 7,580 |1 % annual growth

Miscellaneous 30,286 10,575 35,756 10,600 10,706 10,813 10,921 11,030 11,141 11,252 11,365 11,478 [49999 Rental income (dogsled rides) and 44240 W/O zinc sales 1 % annual growth

TOTAL REV 2,124,927 | 2,239,572 | 2,495,177 | 2,694,665 | 2,935,638 | 2,613,623 | 2,640,484 2,666,368 | 2,695,612 2,724,821 2,754,756 3,212,165

BEG. BALANCE 569,650 626,966 626,966 981,434 209,165 513,354 13,452 56,059 160,909 128,665 309,454 701,958 |previous year's balance

END BALANCE 626,966 831,261 981,434 209,165 513,354 13,452 56,059 160,909 128,665 309,454 701,958 1,582,780

'W/O Plant Replacement Reserve 22,000 33,000 33,000 44,000 55,000 66,000 77,000 88,000 99,000 110,000 121,000 132,000 |Annual allocation of $11k for replacement of pumps and other equipment at W/O Plant

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 648,966 864,261 | 1.014.434 253,165 568,354 79,452 133,059 248,909 227,665 419,454 822,958 1,714,780

12/10/2014 3:41 PM
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Claffey Ecological Consulting, Inc.

Wetlands-Streams-Wildlife-404 Permitting-NEPA-GPS/GIS

Reed Canary Grass Management Plan

Cucumber Gulch Preserve
Breckenridge, Colorado

November 11, 2014

1371 17 RD - Fruita — Colorado 81521
970-640-3783

mclaffey@acsol.net
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1 Introduction

Claffey Ecological Consulting, Inc (CEC) in conjunction with Five Rivers, Inc and AquaTerra
Services, LLC. completed wetland restoration projects on behalf of the Town of Breckenridge
(Town) in the Cucumber Gulch Preserve (CGP) in 2012 and 2013. In the past decade, the
beaver pond/wetland complexes in the CGP were degrading due to failure of beaver dams, and in
2011 major storm events exacerbated this degradation to the point that portions of the Upper
Gulch no longer sustained wetland hydrology (EcoMetrics 2011). In 2012, CEC and associates
repaired degraded and incised beaver dams, removed sediments from the beaver ponds and
restored wetland water supply in the Upper Gulch. As of 2013, beaver have returned to the
system naturally and through transplants by the Town; and, the wetland water supply and
wetland system appears stable. In 2013, CEC completed additional restoration work on the
incised stream channel in the Upper Gulch, restoring two beaver dams, and installing in-channel
log structures to prevent further channel incision.

During field work for design in the summer of 2012, CEC documented the presence of reed
canarygrass (RCG, Phalaris arundinacea) in the Upper Gulch and some of the ponds in the
Lower Gulch. The initial invasions probably occurred over a number of years and spread
throughout the Upper Gulch as sedimentation increased in the upper ponds which ultimately led
to the failure of the beaver dams and exposure of the pond substrate. In the late summer-early
fall of 2013, we observed that RCG was colonizing the restored beaver ponds in the shallow
waters in the Upper Gulch. This species thrives when excess nutrients, particularly phosphorus,
are present in the system and when disturbances occur within native plant communities. Genetic
studies indicate that species found in wetlands may be native to North America; but invasiveness
may have been increased by introgression with a Eurasian cultivar.

Reed canarygrass is not on the Colorado list of noxious weeds, but has been documented to
severely degrade wetland habitats due to its ability to rapidly form dense monospecific stands
(Kercher et al. 2006). RCG infestations can become problematic in wetlands due to its ability to
invade habitats and thrive within a wide range of water level fluctuations, survive in saturated
conditions, and tolerate periods of drought. Severe invasions can alter/constrict water flow
dynamics and increase evapotranspiration, which can affect groundwater characteristics.

CEC was retained by the Town to propose a management program for the eradication of RCG
from the CGP. Because the CGP is a designated wildlife preserve, use of chemical controls
(herbicides) is restricted. Therefore, the objective of this document is to describe the effective
management alternatives CEC has identified based on proven mechanical control methods for
the eradication of RCG in wetland habitats. We then describe our overall approach for RCG
control during year-one and the preliminary results of these efforts. CEC subcontracted with
Alpine Eco Nursery to provide the labor for the selected control methods.
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2 Background

2.1 Reed Canary Grass Reproduction and Basic Ecology

Reed canarygrass (Phalaris arundinacea, here forth referred to as RCG) is a long-lived perennial
grass found in the temperate zones of the Northern Hemisphere. Though considered native to
North America, RCG has been cultivated for livestock forage and non-native varieties
introduced, which likely led to more widespread occurrences and introgression of the exotic
genotype. This species is also considered a highly variable species and can display a range of
phenotypic traits including plant height, size and shape of the inflorescence, and even coloration
which has not been correlated with geographic distribution. Consequently, RCG is generally
considered to have a high degree of inherent plasticity (Apfelbaum and Sams 1987).

RCG reproduces both sexually (via abundant seeds) and vegetatively (via underground
rhizomes) and is capable of re-sprouting from root/stem fragments. Inflorescences can produce
approximately 600-seeds, though generally the primary method of localized establishment and
expansion is through vegetative reproduction. However, RCG can easily re-establish an invaded
site from a retained seed bank and seeds can be transported to adjacent areas through various
vectors including animals, wind, water, and people (TNC 2004). Seed banks are believed to
persist for at least one-year ( WRCGMWG 2009)

RCG is generally one of the first plants to emerge in a wetland and often experiences two peaks
of productivity in the growing season, once in late spring and a second during late summer.
These growth peaks are regulated under separate genetic controls, with the early spring peak
resulting in leaf and inflorescence development and the late summer producing rhizome growth
(WRCGMWSG 2009). Leaf development occurs at nodes along the culm of adult plants. As the
plant matures, new leaf development occur higher up on the culm as the lower portion of the
plant becomes light deprived by the larger/lower leaves. If the stem is cut, new leaves establish
from the base of the plant from either the rhizome or from exposed nodes on the shortened culm
(USDA 2001).

RCG thrives in high nutrient/nitrogen rich environments. For this reason, RCG has been
popular as a biological method of wastewater pollution control (USDA 2001). RCG will also
advantageously move into disturbed sites, including sites/wetlands such as the Upper Gulch at
CGP that experience influxes and accumulation of sediments (Werner and Zedler 2002). Other
disturbances can lead to RCG invasions including erosion, hydrologic instability or modification,
and restoration efforts that resulted in bare ground exposure (WRCGMWG 2009).

2.2 Reed Canary Grass Control Methods Summary

Our review of current literature provided insightful guidance for development of an effective

reed canary grass management program. However, it was evident that diligence and time are
both integral for complete control. Eradication of RCG will not be immediate, and will likely
require multiple years of follow-up treatment and monitoring to ensure its complete removal
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from CGP. However, with appropriate measures the CGP can be restored to a more natural state
and future invasions of RCG can be avoided.

The invasive characteristics of RCG relate directly to its ability to expand rapidly from dense
underground rhizomes and sprout from seed banks. Therefore, it is important to employ methods
that target both the existing above ground vegetative/flowering material and below ground roots
and seeds. The complete removal of RCG and restoration of invaded habitats within the CGP
will involve multiple steps which can generally be broken down into the following:

Control/removal of the existing RCG plants

Suppression of growth from below-ground rhizomes

Suppression/exhaustion of seed bank

Restoration of native plant material (via seeds/plugs)

Prevention of new RCG plant material/seeds from entering restoration area, and
Continued monitoring and rapid follow-treatment for new invasions

o U s wn e

In this section we discuss options gleaned from the literature for manual/non-chemical control of
RCG. We relied heavily on existing management plans/programs which provide both
prospective methods for control and in some cases offered feedback on outcomes of the
employed methods for control of RCG. In general, the literature suggests that implementation of
manual control measures only will be ineffective for complete control of RCG. However,

several reports suggest that sites that continue to support predominately native plant communities
nearby (which can supply seed stock to fill-in newly created gaps where RCG was removed) and
sites with relatively recent invasions may have greater success with manual control measures
(Reinhardt and Galatowitsch 2004).

2.2.1 Hand-Removal

Hand-removal (digging/pulling) can be an effect method of RCG removal for small or isolated
patches; however, this method can also result in broken root fragments that can easily resprout
(Jefferson County Noxious Weed Program 2012). For this reason, hand-pulling should be
reserved for removal of seedlings/immature plants.

2.2.2 Digging/Excavation

Manual digging/excavation of small clumps and isolated patches is likely to be more effective
than hand-pulling if digging succeeds in complete extraction of the entire root system. The
Jefferson County (WA) Noxious Weed Program recommends performing manual excavation in
areas with very moist soils. Excavation should occur after removal of surface obstructions
(rocks, sticks, etc) and should be implemented with slow and steady pressure to reduce the risk
of root fragmentation.
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2.2.3 Mowing/Cutting

Many studies/reports suggest that mowing is effective for eliminating seed production but overall
is ineffective for long-term control, and if only done once or twice a year can actually stimulate
stem production. However, repeat mowing (four to five times within a growing season) has been
shown to reduce reed canary grass populations by preventing photosynthesis and essentially
“starving” the roots by depletion of carbohydrate reserves. The plant will respond by producing
new shoots until the point of complete carbohydrate depletion. The University of California
Weed Research and Information Center also recommends repeat mowing five times per season
for multiple years (DiTomaso et al. 2013). The USDA Natural Resource Conservation Science
(NRCS) recommends initiating mowing when large amounts of above ground biomass are
produced, and repeating the process when stubble height is 4 inches or less so that the plant is
forced to develop new shoots (2001). A study led by Francis Naglich within a national wildlife
refuge in Washington State indicated that because mowing forces mature plants to divert
resources from roots to above ground biomass, this method can be effective for preventing
further spread of RCG by reducing rhizomatic expansion.

2.2.4 Burning

It is generally suggested that controlled burning RCG has similar effectiveness/mechanism as
mowing, in that a single burn event may stimulate stem production unless the fire burns through
the entire root system (sod layer). Additionally, RCG generally remains green throughout the
entire growing season so does not burn very hot (TNC 2004). One study did investigate the
timing of burning on RCG dominance in plots planted with a variety of C3 and C4 grasses.
RCG quickly dominated the plots; however, controlled burns in early spring or late summer
significantly reduced RCG cover and allowed other species to establish (Howe 2000).

2.2.5 Solarization

The Wisconsin Weed Canary Grass Management Working Group provides useful
recommendations for RCG control including use of solarization techniques. This method
employs the use of black plastic or fabric which kills vegetation by shading and/or increasing
temperature. Further discussions with restoration ecologist and weed management specialist

Dr. Joy Zedler from the University of Wisconsin provided additional insight for use of
solarization techniques in appropriate areas. According to Dr. Zedler (Pers. Comm. May
2014), solarization works both by increasing temperatures and/or reducing light levels for
extended periods which eventually kill the covered vegetation; though she stressed to fully cover
patches and extend the covering beyond the patch area as RCG can expand vegetatively from
underground rhizomes and outside the covering.

1 C3and C4 refers to the pathway of carbon fixation by perennial grasses, C4 grasses are generally adapted to drier and/or wetter conditions and
typically undergo active growth during warmer spring/summer months (Williams 1974).

5
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There are encouraging results from studies that have utilized solarization for RCG. A short-term
study conducted in Oregon showed very positive results from use of solarziation for control of
RCG in experimental plots. In his experiments, Johnson (2005) placed black or clear plastic
sheets over the 200 square foot RCG plots after mowing. Mowing occurred in spring and again
in the fall at which point the plastic sheets were installed and remained in place for one year.
After a one year period, RCG was completed eradicated from the solarization plots (100% stem
reduction) (Johnson 2005). However, no long term follow-up data on regrowth was available
from this study. Lindig-Cisneros and Zedler (2001) also found that light limitation (darkness)
prevents or significantly reduces RCG seed germination; therefore, use of dark covering for
solarization of adult plants would likely dually prevent germination of seeds from the existing
seed bank.

2.2.6 Mulching

Use of mulches for RCG control, similar to solarization can reduce RCG biomass through
shading, may function more effectively in areas with significant microtopography. This
technique, as with solarization, relies upon the covering remaining in place for a long-period
(one year or longer) to completely kill adult plants and prevent rhizomes and seeds from
resprouting. Mulching has had mixed effectiveness as a method for RCG control.

2.2.7 Revegetation

Several studies have investigated the use of high density plantings in RCG infested areas to
reduce RCG cover/dominance. Kim et al. (2006) used live willow stakes planted at high
density to control RCG at wetland sites. Stakes were planting after one application of
mowing/mulch placement to slow the growth of RCG. They found that after two growing
seasons, the willows reduced the total biomass of RCG by 68% (0.6 m spacing) and 56.1% (with
0.91 m spacing), with no additional control measures implemented during that period. It was
suggested that the reduction of RCG biomass was achieved primary from shading.

Studies utilizing wetland herbs such as Carex sp. show less promising results on their ability to
outcompete RCG. However, one study looked at the effects of lowering available soil nitrogen
(N) through the addition of carbon and cover crop removal in study plots planted with RCG and
Carex. The control plots were overwhelming dominated by RCG (91%) while the study plots
with carbon enrichment had significant RCG biomass reduction (82%) (Perry et al. 2004).
Another study tested a similar hypothesis of reducing total soil N levels through the addition of
sawdust in restored sedge meadows. Though total N levels were reduced only in the short-term,
the sawdust treated study plots had decreased RCG establishment by 78% and 67% (lannone et
al. 2008). These studies suggest that removal of excess nitrogen in addition to high density
plantings may allow the establishment of native wetland species over RCG.

A management report prepared by the Nature Conservancy (TNC 2004) also suggested creating
a dense herb layer consisting of grasses, sedges, and rushes may be affective for preventing RCG
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dominance and suppressing germination of an existing seed bank. Claffey Ecological has had
success in restricting RCG in wetland restoration or establishment projects by establishing dense
cover of native hydrophytes through both heavy seeding rates of grasses and planting nursery
stock of sedges (Carex sp.).

2.3 Reed Canary Grass Control Recommendations for the CGP

Reed canary grass within the CGP established primarily on the drained beavers dams during the
periods of channel incision and dam failure in the upper gulch, and declining beaver populations
in the lower gulch. The beaver dams, which can very old with continuous rebuilding on old
structures, consist of willow stems, soil and herbaceous growth. The larger dams are several feet
above the adjacent wetland substrate; and, when the ponds are drained the dams dry as they are
well above the natural groundwater levels. We observed RCG on the abandoned dams in the
upper gulch and in some locations within the dried ponds in 2012. The restoration work in 2012
and subsequent recolonization by beavers reactivated the beaver ponds in the upper gulch,
restoring wetland conditions; but also providing ample water for the growth of RCG. RCG
expanded and appears vigorous on the dams but also spread into the shallow water and pond
margins associated with the active beaver ponds.

We did not know much about populations in the Lower Gulch prior to this effort but the mapping
described below provides that information. We learned two promising pieces of information this
spring of 2014. One is that nitrogen and phosphorous levels in the water quality data collected to
date for the GCP do not appear to be unusually high (Mark Beardsley, EcoMetrics- Personal
Communication 2014). Although the levels are not at reference standards, it would appear that
excess N and P should not drive expansion of RCG. The second was that although RCG is
present in the Lower Guich, it is much lower density or prevalence than in the Upper Gulch.

3 Methods

3.1 RCG Mapping

The first step in control was to map existing populations. In 2014, we started this process in
early June beginning in areas supporting known populations, and where we were able to identify
young growth. We returned in late June at which point mature plants has grown sufficiently to
map other areas. We mapped individual clumps and larger patches with a Trimble GPS and
produced maps in GIS using a recent orthophotograph as the basemap. We classified
patches/populations based on the density of RCG as “zones” ranging from 1-6:

e Zone 1: 100 % cover of RCG

e Zone 2: RCG mixed with other invasive species

e Zone 3: RCG mixed with 20% or less cover of native species

e Zone 4: RCG mixed with greater than 20% cover of native species
e Zone 5: RCG sporadic with native species

e Zone 6: RCG mixed with willows
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3.2 RCG Control

We selected the control methods to be implemented in 2014 after mapping the existing
populations and evaluating the habitats, locations and densities of the RCG populations.
Ultimately we determined that mowing/cutting would be the most effective and feasible control
method for most patches/populations. Additionally, for small patches and clumps that are
growing in water, we recommended digging/excavation. The use of solarization was also
considered; however, given the high use of the areas to be treated by native wildlife (e.g. beaver
and native ungulates (moose, elk and deer)) we felt that use of large plastic sheets would either
deter use of the areas by wildlife or the plastic would be damaged quickly by wildlife. Since the
largest concentrations of RCG were on the crest of active beaver dams, we were also concerned
with how the beavers would react to black plastic covering the dam.

3.2.1 Mowing/ Cutting -Followed by Revegetation

We believe that mowing with gas powered weed whackers remains the best option for control in
the CGP. We recommended that patches/populations be re-mowed prior to the culms exceeding
4 inches in growth per USDA recommendations. In addition to mowing during the first visit, the
field crew also collected multiple bags of plant material from last season, which still contained
seed heads, in an attempt to remove some of the existing seed stock. We also recommended that
if the field crew returned and plant growth had exceeded 4 inches or seed heads were observed,
that they also remove this material. Plant material was placed in large black plastic bags and
removed offsite. Mowing was executed by Alpine Eco field crew members.

We plan to revegetate mowed areas, but after RCG is controlled to some degree, otherwise we
would be mowing the desirable species. One of the species under consideration for revegetation
is tall manna grass (Glyceria grandis). This native wetland grass does very well from seed,
develops dense stands that could outcompete the RCG, and grows to a height sufficient to shade
new growth of RCG. CEC has used this species will high success in wetland restoration projects
by including it in a seed mix. Plantings of nursery grown willow and sedge species (Carex
utriculata, C. aquatilis, or others) is also under consideration depending on moisture regimes and
habitats conditions. Another option will be the use of willow cuttings harvested and prepared
correctly. It is likely that a specific seed mix will be developed for each area based on micro
habitat traits, and that mix would be seeded combined with plantings after RCG is controlled.

3.2.2 Digging/Excavation

As described above, we recommended digging/excavation of patches of RCG that were
inundated and where mowing was not feasible. Shovels were used to remove the entire plant and
root mass. The plant material was then placed in large plastic bags and removed offsite.
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4 Results

4.1 Mapping

The CEC mapping efforts are illustrated in Maps A — E (following text). The Overview map
illustrates the mapping areas within the CGP. Representative site images are included following
the report text. CEC identified a total of 16 distinct patches/populations in the Upper Gulch and
three patches/populations in the Lower Gulch. The patches/populations ranged in size from
small single patches (roughly 2-4 square feet of cover) to larger populations nearing 40 feet in
length (roughly up to 400 square feet of cover). Most of the larger patches were mixed with
native species. We flagged the larger RCG stands with orange pin flags and occasionally flagged
the center of a small patch. In addition to RCG, CEC and Alpine Eco noted the presence of
several other invasive species of concern including Canada thistle (Cirsium arvense), hairy
bittercress (Cardimine hirsuta), mayweed chamomile (Anthemis cotula), and yellow toadflax
(Lanaria vulgaris). Dr. Christy Carello was on site conducting monitoring of wildlife use of the
gulch, and occasionally reported locations of these other weed species. CEC contracted with
Alpine Eco to remove these other weeds by hand and that worked progressed through the
summer into early fall.

4.2 RCG Control

During the summer 2014 (year-one of control), mapped RCG patches/populations were mowed a
total of five times during the growing season over nine total visits. The first mowing was on
June 11, and the final complete mowing was completed on September 5. CEC inspected the
Gulch in mid-July and early August to observe conditions after several mowing treatments. The
Upper Gulch stands of RCG were mowed to height of only a few inches, but there were
occasional outliers of maturing plants that were not cut during the July site visit. Ms. Crumb of
CEC conducted a follow-up final visit on September 24, 2014. During this visit, Ms. Crumb
observed that the mowed RCG populations had not recovered in vegetative/above ground growth
since the last mowing. All mowed vegetation was generally less than 6 inches in total height at
the end of the growing season (RCG is usually 3-4 feet high and higher at this time of year).
However, three patches of RCG not previously mapped/documented were observed with
significant vegetation growth. It is likely that these patches were not seen during the initial
mapping and thus were missed during the control effort and are not the result of new
spread/expansion.

In additional to mowing/excavating RCG, the Alpine Eco field crew also removed patches and
populations the four other invasive species of concern identified on the site. During the
September 2014 site visit, Ms. Crumb did not observe these other weed species in the Upper
Gulch wetland areas.
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5 Conclusions

The year-one control effort showed some progress in the control of reed canary grass in the
Cucumber Gulch Preserve. Mowed populations and excavated patches showed signs of inhibited
growth and potentially decline. It is highly unlikely that one year of mowing will result in the
complete suppression and eradication of RCG; however, our initial findings are encouraging that
repeat mowing will be an effect tool for control of RCG in the CGP. For year two control
efforts, we recommend repeating the mapping effort to identify any new patches/populations and
a mowing treatment of at least 5 visits and cuttings. We also recommend continued removal of
plant material early in the growing season to reduce the propagules load in the system.

We anticipate that several years of mowing will result in sufficient suppression of RCG growth
to initiate revegetation efforts, which will prevent new invasions and allow out-competition of
the remnant RCG plants. When the revegetation efforts would start depends on observations of
RCG suppression.

Recommendations:

1. Map the stands of RCG in early spring and then again in mid to Late June to find outliers
when the plants mature. The early spring mapping is needed to start the mowing, but the
plants are in a vegetative stage and difficult to locate.

2. Ensure that the mowers can recognize RCG and find all plants in a mapped stand, or
nearby the mapped stand.

3. Inspect the mowing work in mid to late July, and again in late August.

10
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Photo 1. Early growth of reed canarygrass on a beaver dam in the Upper Gulch (June 2014).

Photo 2. Early growth RCG within last growing season RCG plant material (June 2014).
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Photo 3. Excavating RCG within one of the Upper Gulch ponds.

Photo 4. Collecting RCG plant material within the Upper Gulch.
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Photo 5. Mowed RCG patch (September 2014).

Photo 6. Mowed RCG on a beaver dam in the Upper Gulch (September 2014).
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Photo 7. View of mowed RCG adjacent to a pond in the Upper Gulch (September 2014).

Photo 8. Trash bags with RCG biomass for later transport out of site
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Friends of the Dillon Ranger District

2014 Upper Blue Project Report
Goal # 1 - Reconstructive Bridge Work on Peaks Trail (Breckenridge)

Identified Project — Replace “corduroy” bridges on the Peaks Trail in Breckenridge. Complete general
maintenance on Peak Trail in Breckenridge.

2014 Goal Achievement:

Due to the significant increase in the cost of lumber and other materials needed replace bridges (150%
from the summer of 2013) FDRD elected to alter our plans. We decided to build turnpikes and fill
perpetually wet areas on the Peaks Trail (hiked in from the Green Tank) at two different locations. 48
feet of turnpike and 8 feet of armored areas were completed over two separate 2-day projects. In
addition, FDRD supplied the lumber and materials (approx. $5,000) for the Rocky Mountain Youth Corps
to reconstruct a 60’ length of bride on the Peaks Trail. The FDRD Peaks Trail bridge work planned for
2014 has now been shifted to the 2015 calendar for a similar project.

Goal #2 - In 2014, FDRD will continue its trail maintenance on the popular McCullough Gulch Trail,
building upon work completed in 2011 and 2013.

Identified Project — Improve the White Loop Trail. Reroute McCullough Gulch Trail to the White Falls
Loop Trail. Close down and rehabilitate the “Waterfall Mud Bog” section of McCullough Gulch Trail.

2014 Goal Achievement:

Due to unforeseen circumstances beyond our control, this project was severely compromised. A mine
lease holder on the trail threatened the safety of the FDRD staff and volunteers so a decision was made
to cancel this project. The trail maintenance at McCullough Gulch Trail will be implemented into the
2015 project calendar as long as these extraneous circumstances have been resolved (currently this
individual has been removed from the property).

As a result of this circumstance we relocated this planned worksite to the Colorado Trail in Horseshoe
Gulch. FDRD supervised the Rocky Mountain Youth Corps on installing check-steps where the Hippo
Trail meets the Colorado Trail. 60 check-steps and 13 drainage dips were installed to improve the
sustainability of the trail tread over a two week period.

We had two more weeks with RMYC and again changed location to the middle fork of the Swan drainage
on the Colorado Trail. Their work shifted from earthwork to rock work and progress slowed. However,
10 more drainage dips and 16 check-steps were installed on this rocky section of the Colorado Trail.
FDRD worked with the RMYC for a total of four weeks on the Colorado Trail work, at a cost to FDRD of
$24,800 (4 wks x $6,200/wk)
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Goal #3 - A) In 2014, FDRD will continue trail maintenance work on the Mtn. Pride Trail, building upon
work completed in 2012; B) In 2014 FDRD will begin trail maintenance work on either Pinball Alley Trail
or Little French Guich.

2014 Goal Achievement:

A) A two-day volunteer project with Christy Sports was completed on July 15" and 16", as their Adopt-
A-Trail effort. Volunteers worked on a boggy area on the Mtn. Pride trail rock armoring two drains. This
project was not fully completed and will require more attention in the coming years. However, one rock-
armored drain was completed and the other was started. The recommendation would be to add some
lateral drainage to create a dryer trail in between the two rock armored drains. This may be added to
the 2015 calendar but is yet to be determined.

B) We focused our Twilight Projects in Breckenridge at Pinball Alley for the month of July. We
completed 100 feet of deberming, 6 drainage dips and .3 miles of trail maintainence. These projects
took place each Tuesday evening of the month and we had a total of 29 volunteers participate.

Goal #4 — In 2014, FDRD will continue restoration efforts in the Swan River Drainage, building upon work
completed in 2012 and 2013.

Identified Project — Close and rehabilitate road sections and campsites identified by the USFS as critical
for protection of native fish habitat in the Swan River Drainage.

2014 Goal Achievement:

In partnership with Blue River Watershed Group, Trout Unlimited, and Summit County Open Space and
Trails, a one-day volunteer project was completed on September 13™. We had 27 volunteers work
alongside FDRD and USFS staff to plant ~550 spruce and pine trees in the Swan River Drainage where an
old road had been closed down to create habitat.

Goal #5 — In 2014, FDRD, in partnership with Colorado Fourteeners Initiative (CFl), will continue general
maintenance on the Quandary Peak Trail, building upon work completed in 2011, 2012, and 2013.

Identified Project — Improve the Quandary Peak Trail, specific project work will be outlined with CFI as
the snow melts.

2014 Goal Achievement:

In partnership with CFl, a one-day volunteer project was completed on July 19™. Eight project volunteers
were split into three groups to close 50 feet of trail and install 20 feet of rock wall on Quandary Peak.

52 of 138



53 of 138



54 of 138



55 of 138



56 of 138



57 of 138



58 of 138



59 of 138



60 of 138



61 of 138



62 of 138



63 of 138



64 of 138



65 of 138



66 of 138



67 of 138



68 of 138



69 of 138



70 of 138



71 of 138



72 of 138



73 of 138



74 of 138



75 of 138



76 of 138



77 of 138



78 of 138



79 of 138



80 of 138



81 0f 138



82 of 138



83 of 138



I. AGENCY INFORMATION — 1 page maximum
A. Describe the mission of the organization. (What does the organization exist to do?)

CFI preserves and protects the natural integrity of Colorado’s 54 peaks exceeding 14,000 feet and the high-quality recreational opportunities
they provide through active stewardship and public education. CFI is a partner organization of the US Forest Service and the Bureau of Land
Management, raising private funds and engaging volunteers to protect these high-visibility public assets. Hundreds of thousands of hikers
climb the 14er peaks annually. Expanding recreational use and informally developed summit trails combine to trample and kill fragile native
vegetation that took thousands of years to develop. Alpine plants found on most Fourteeners are significantly more vulnerable to even low
levels of disturbance than plants found at lower altitudes; some exist nowhere else in the world. Failure to control recreation-caused impacts
places them at risk for global extinction. Failure to address recreation-caused impacts also risks the practice of hiking and climbing on these
peaks, as land managers may need to consider use limitations and permits that likely will reduce use and the resulting tourism dollars flowing
in to trailhead communities across the state.

B. Briefly describe the history of the organization.

Colorado Fourteeners Initiative was formed in 1994 as a partnership of nonprofit organizations, concerned individuals and public agencies,
including the Colorado Mountain Club, Colorado Outward Bound School, Volunteers for Outdoor Colorado, Rocky Mountain Field Institute,
Leave No Trace Center for Outdoor Ethics and the US Forest Service. A 1993 study noted significant environmental impacts on the
Fourteeners due to rapidly expanding recreational use. Visitors are drawn to the rugged beauty and relative ease of access of Colorado’s
signature peaks, with routes ranging from easy hikes to difficult climbs, Since CFI’s founding, Colorado’s population has been among the
fastest growing in the country, fueled by fit, outdoor-oriented people moving here. Between 1990 and 2010, Colorado added 1.7 million new
residents, a 53% increase. Outdoor recreation is the second-largest segment of Colorado’s tourism industry, with 42% of overnight pleasure
trip visitors stopping in the mountains, 17% hiking and 6% participating in mountain climbing. CSU Professor Catherine Keske found that
Fourteener climbers, whether local or tourist, spent an average of $107 per day on food, equipment, and lodging in support of climbing
Fourteener peaks. Annual monitoring shows an increased rate of deterioration, with faster and greater loss of alpine vegetation and soils unless
timely trail restoration work is completed. Since its inception, CFI has become the country’s leading organization building sustainable trails at
high altitudes, restoring damaged tundra and providing on-mountain education to Fourteener hikers and climbers. Major trail reconstruction
projects have been completed on 29 routes located on 26 peaks, with CFI’s work garnering awards and accolade from Congress, the National
Forest Foundation, local and regional US Forest Service offices and other partner organizations. In 2014 CFI completed an exhaustive, foot-
by-foot GPS-based conditions assessment on 42 14er routes statewide, which noted the need for future work and prioritized work on each
peak and across the entire 14er trail system statewide.

C. Describe current programs and accomplishments. Please be as specific as possible. (Numbers served,
events held, services provided, etc).

Colorado Fourteeners Initiative a) constructs sustainable located summit routes and restores closed routes, b) mobilizes volunteer “Adopt-a-
Peak” trail maintenance/terrain restoration projects, c¢) performs intensive trail maintenance at high altitudes and farther from trailheads
through hired maintenance crews, d) inventories and monitors conditions on previously constructed summit trails to prioritize maintenance
needs, and e) educates hikers about minimum impact techniques to protect fragile alpine ecosystems. CFI has constructed 29 sustainable
routes on 26 peaks. In 2013 CFI completed new, sustainable trails on San Luis Peak (both Stewart and Cochetopa Creek routes) and Maroon
Peak. Major trail reconstruction work is being performed during 2014 on Mount Bierstadt, El Diente Peak and Mount of the Holy Cross/Notch
Mountain. In 2013 CFI mobilized an all-time record of 1,330 volunteer days of trail maintenance and stewardship working on 53 projects on
19 Fourteeners. This brought total stewardship to more than 9,200 volunteer trail maintenance days since 2001. In 2014 CFI is focused on
running more than 40 volunteer projects in hopes of completing an estimated 900+ volunteer days of trail maintenance and restoration work.
Included are an estimated six Adopt-a-Peak volunteer projects on Summit County’s Quandary Peak. Earlier this year CFI’s Sustainable Trails
Program completed analysis of the 42 summit routes inventoried over the past three seasons. This work prioritized the severity of conditions
on each route and for a number of composite variables. The amount of work needed to bring all trails up to ideal standards and the
commensurate costs have been estimated, which show a need for at least $24 million. A final report on the project will be released later this
year. Specific to Quandary Peak, the inventory project estimated that the primary eastside route on the mountain will need a further $640,525
in work to bring the trail up to desirable standards, as well as $17,573 in on-going annual maintenance. The less frequently climbed route via
Blue Lakes and the west ridge is estimated to need $175,051 to bring it up to desired conditions. A Summit County-based volunteer has
reenergized the Peak Stewards program, which had put in 52 volunteer days of on-mountain education through mid-July. As of the end of the
2013 summer field season, CFI Peak Stewards had put in 1,250 volunteer educations days. Volunteers and crews have combined to directly
contact more than 63,000 hikers since 2002. Enhanced promotion of CFI’s YouTube channel this summer by the 14ers.com website pushed
total video views from roughly 10,500 in May to more than 19,600 in early August. More than six new videos will be developed and posted by
the middle of October. And, new trailhead kiosks will be installed later this summer at Mount Bierstadt, Mount of the Holy Cross and Mount
Yale—peaks where CFI has done and continues to do major route reconstruction.
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II. PURPOSE OF GRANT
A. Describe the project/program(s) to be funded.

Quandary Peak, one of Colorado’s most-climbed Fourteeners, sees 500 or more people per weekend day in July and August. It contains
10 rare plant species, including one unique in the world. Properly maintained trails and educated hikers are vital to ensuring the survival
of these ecosystems. Even though the trail was laid out and reconstructed in 2001-02, extremely heavy hiker use and a very fluid
environment where thunderstorms and snowmelt can cause significant erosion on steep hiking trails contribute to the need to have
continual maintenance to control runoff and limit erosion of thin alpine soils. CFI will conduct at six to eight one-day Adopt-a-Peak
projects in 2015 involving at least 100 volunteer days to maintain 0.5 miles of trail, repair heavily-worn sections, narrow the trail, and
control soil erosion. Secondary revegetation efforts will occur on another 0.5 miles of closed trail to continue naturalizing this denuded
area with native vegetation. The grant will fund staff time planning the six-plus volunteer projects and working with partner
organizations or directly recruiting an average of 20 volunteers per project. The grant also will fund staff time of the Adopt-a-Peak crew
(two experienced seasonal leaders, three crew members and one intern) to manage the projects, including paying for contract leaders for
days when particularly large groups are anticipated. The value of volunteer labor contributed through these stewardship projects is
estimated at almost $18,000 assuming 100 volunteer days occur over the season. Further, CFI will again place a TRAFx infrared trail
counter in a cairn mid-way up Quandary Peak to monitor the number of hikers climbing this peak on a daily basis. Staff will hike the
mountain to download data from the counter at least monthly over the course of the summer and fall. This use information allows CFI
and the Forest Service to track use and see how hiking use affects on-the-ground conditions and the need for continued trail
reconstruction, maintenance and restoration work.

B. Project/Program Budget - Please complete a detailed proposed budget for each project/program for which funds are
being requested. Please complete additional budgets as needed to identify all sources of funds and expenses. If you are
asking for general operating funds, this does NOT need to be completed.

Program Name:  Trail Stewardship and Hiker Education Program

Amount Committed

Proposed Revenue Amount Requested or Note as Pending
Individual Contributions & Corporate Support (list)
Kaiser, Booz Allen, Climax, REI, Bold Earth, others $25,100 2015 Applications
Subtotal (Individual and Corporate Support) $25,100 $
Government Grants (list)
Colorado State Trails (committed), Local Govts (pending) $100,475 $89,000
Subtotal (Government Grants) $100,475 $89,000
Foundation Grants (list)
Aspen Skiing, Xcel, Summit, Musser Fund, Gates Family $42,500 2015 Applications
Subtotal (Foundation Grants) $42,500 $
Clients/Participants & Other (Identify Sources)
Appelson Internship Endowment draw $2,750 $2,750
Total Projected Revenue $170,825 $91,750
Proposed Expenses (Itemize Expenses)
Core Staff planning/logistics $45,668
Sustainable Trails counter and inventory work $14,683
6 seasonal trail crew leaders $90,000
Cell/satellite phones $960
Staff/volunteer food $8,880
Equipment/training/uniforms/project materials $5,158
Travel (2 crews, 2 trucks) $9,546
Peak Steward materials/incentives $1,000
Total Proposed Expenses $175,895
85 of 138 Balance <$5,070>

3



Explanations (please identify extraordinary, unclear or additional notes regarding balance or projections)

The vast majority of CFI’s funding comes in the form of annual grants—even from funders that have supported CFI’s work year after
year. Thus, in mid-summer there is little visibility going forward regarding hard financial commitments for the coming calendar year.
Most of this funding will be applied for throughout the year, even while work is under way in a given field season. CFI has an
approved State Trails grant that will contribute roughly $89,000 for stewardship work in 2015. Further, the Appelson Internship
Endowment continues to grow and spin off funding annually.

C. What need, gap, or opportunity does the project/program address? How does this project/program benefit the
local community? If available, provide data or research that supports your request.

Without CFI’s leadership, the Fourteeners—especially high-use peaks like Quandary Peak—will be overrun and sustain severe ecological
damage, possible irreversible. The Forest Service lacks the capacity to build and maintain sustainable trails, monitor visitor use trends, and
educate visitors about minimum-impact techniques. Prolonged budget cuts and staffing reductions mean that on most forests needed trail work
is performed by volunteer stewardship organizations. CFI’s 20-year history has developed a unique expertise for working in rugged, high-
altitude areas, and marshaling the volunteer and financial support of diverse government, foundation, corporate, and individual sources needed
to tackle these involved projects. If CFI has inadequate financial capacity to perform these projects, no other entity will take its place. If CFI is
unable to protect Quandary Peak’s summit trail and surrounding terrain from user-caused resource impacts, the Forest Service likely will
resort to use limitations to control impacts. This would have a negative impact on one of Summit County’s most prominent tourist
destinations, putting a significant dent in the country’s tourism economy. However, CFI working in concert with statewide and local volunteer
stewardship groups (including Volunteers for Outdoor Colorado, Wildlands Restoration Volunteers, Friends of the Dillon Ranger District) and
other partner organizations will continue to grow our investments in Quandary Peak as dedicated local funding for this work increases.

D. Grant Request Work Plan: Definitions & Examples -
Goal of Request: A goal is a broad statement that reflects how you will achieve the mission. Example: Increase public

awareness for the importance of early childhood issues.
Grant Request Strategy to Address Goal: Strategies outline the major methods for achieving a goal. Example:
Establish a speaker’s bureau that provides monthly presentations to community groups on key early childhood issues.

Activities to Achieve Strategy | Quantifiable Results of Qualitative Results of Timeline Responsible
Strategy Strategy Party

Definition: Definition: Definition: Definition: Definition:

What major steps or actions What results can you count What change will occur in When will the Who is

need to occur to achieve the

and track as a result of the

the knowledge or behavior of

activities/strategy be

responsible for

strategy? strategy being successfully the targeted audience as a completed completing the
implemented? result of the strategy? activities?

Example: Example:

-Create a presentation outline Example: Example: -April 2015 Example:

-Write a speakers bureau -100 community members -Attendees will report -May 2015 -Program

volunteer description attend presentations gaining new knowledge -July 2015 Director

-Recruit volunteers -12 one hour presentations about key issues. -Sept 2015 -Adm. Staff

-Train volunteers on how to use
template

held

Grant Request Work Plan: for this Application (note: if you have multiple strategies, please complete a separate work plan

table for each).

Goal of Request:

Adopt-a-Peak: Continue addressing needed trail reconstruction, maintenance and vegetation restoration on the Quandary Peak summit trail to
help it reach desired conditions. Schedule and execute 6-8 day-long volunteer trail projects that engage more than 100 participants.

Sustainable Trails: Track visitor use on the main Quandary Peak ascent route to better understand use patterns and resulting impacts on the
constructed ascent trail. As resources allow, update baseline conditions on the route.

Peak Stewards: Continue to educate hikers on Quandary Peak through use of trained volunteers recruited locally.
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Grant Request Strategy to Address Goal:

Adopt-a-Peak: Recruit Adopt-a-Peak groups and schedule projects sufficient to achieve the quantitative and qualitative goals (6-8 projects and
100+ volunteer days), hire six-person Adopt-a-Peak trail leadership crew that will general operate as two independent three-person crews.

Sustainable Trails: Utilize core staff and summer intern to place TRAFx infrared trail counter in a cairn mid-way up the Quandary Peak route.
Download data at least monthly from May/June through September/October as snow conditions allow.

Peak Stewards: 1) Hold local recruitment and training events in the Summit County area. 2) Ask each trained volunteer to put in at least four
days educating hikers on the peak. 3) Monitor and provide on-going contact to ensure participation does not drop off throughout the summer.

Activities to Achieve Strategy | Quantifiable Results of Qualitative Results of Timeline Responsible
Strategy Strategy Party
Recruit Adopt-a-Peak partner Schedule 6-8 Adopt-a-Peak Engaged local volunteers 10/2014 to 9/2015 Benjamin
groups from the community or | project days with an with greater capabilities to Quandary Peak Adopt Hanus (Field
groups with strong ties to estimated 100+ volunteer perform needed trail Projects: Programs
Quandary Peak days donated maintenance work - Schedule project Manager),
dates with returning | Morgan

Recruit, hire, train, and deploy | Quandary Peak: Strengthened partnerships partners (FDRD, Childs
Adopt-a-Peak crews (2 crews - Friends of Dillon Ranger | with new and returning Bold Earth, Xcel (Development
with 3 crew members each) District (1 day, 20 partner organizations Energy, Regis, Big and Programs

people) Agnes) Coordinator),
Schedule TRAFX unit - Regis University (2 - Recruit new and Lloyd
installation, revisit site at least days, 10 people each) partners Athearn
monthly to download data from | -  Xcel Energy Day of - Ifunsuccessful, post | (Executive
counter, and remove unit in fall Service (1 day, 40 project on 14ers.org | Director)

people) website
Secure volunteer to run Peak - Bold Earth Teen - Adopt-a-Peak crew:
Stewards program and hold Adventures (2 days, 20 Post positions by
trainings as necessary people) 1/2015 and hire by

- Big Agnes (1 day, 10 5/2015
people)

E. How do you plan to continue the operation of and funding for the project/program in the future? (3 year — 5
years)

CFT funds its programs through a mix of sources. In years past partner support from the US Forest Service and large grants from the
National Forest Foundation and Colorado State Trails program provided the bulk of funding needed for CFI to perform its important trail
and vegetation stewardship work. However, these organizations have either had budgets cut, provide significantly smaller grants, or have
changed priorities such that funding is more difficult to obtain. This decline in large government and foundation grants necessitated a
more diversified base of support that increasingly relies on communities to support work occurring on nearby projects. CFI tries to build
and nurture strong partnerships with funders that span many years even if grants must be applied for annually. For example, anticipated
funders like REI, Xcel Energy, and The Summit Foundation have all supported CFI’s volunteer-based stewardship work for a minimum
of five years. Continued participation by geographically focused funders (local governments, local businesses, local foundations) is vital
to CFI’s long-term efforts to preserve and protect the Fourteeners. The growth in financial commitments from The Summit Foundation,
Summit County local governments, and employers with a focus on Summit County have allowed CFI to expand program work on
Quandary Peak and better protect what is one of the highest-use 14ers in the state. Matching fund requirements for many of CFI’s grants
will leverage donations from the local governments in Summit County several times over, increasing the impact of your gift.

F. If there is additional information that is vital to convey in this proposal, such as financial, legal, operational
or administrative clarifications, please do so here.

Note regarding detailed funding sheet IV (Detailed sources of Funding) and Attachment A-4 (YTD financial reports): Amounts listed as
“Awarded for 2014” are year-to-date figures through 7/31/2013. CFI’s funding is very much back loaded in any given year.
Reimbursements from the US Forest Service usually do not begin arriving until August and run through the end of the year.
Reimbursements on Colorado State Trails program grants typically take 106 days for payment, so some of the expenses incurred on 2014
summer projects will not be seen until early 2015. Further, roughly 60 percent of individual donations arrive in November and December.
Thus, the organization always looks to be in hopeless financial condition through much of the year, but usually ends the year in good
shape. Since most of CFI’s field work is funded by annual grants, most of which are written in the year the work will occur, the detailed

2015 budget will not be finalized until the February 2015 board meeting, making it impossible to predict revenues at this early date.
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III. EVALUATION — | page maximum
A. How will you measure the impact of the project?

CFT’s trail maintenance, reconstruction, and vegetation restoration work is very tangible, measured in quantifiable statistics including
linear feet of trail maintained, number and type of trail structures installed, and surface area of terrain restored. This information is tracked
annually to show progress on individual peaks and across the Fourteeners statewide. The USFS reviews work to ensure it is completed
satisfactorily and will pass the test of time. Process inputs, like the number of volunteers, hours worked, age and gender of participants is
tracked and reported annually. CFI also tracks visitor contacts made by crews and volunteer Peak Stewards, which helps gauge the
organization’s educational presence among the hiking public. Information is reviewed at least annually by CFI’s board and the Forest
Service.

Beyond these qualitative measures, CFI’s Sustainable Trails Program has inventoried baseline conditions on 42 constructed trails and
many of the most popular user-created summit trails that have not yet been properly reconstructed. These detailed, foot-by-foot, GPS-
linked baseline inventories have been conducted on most of the Fourteener summit routes, which inventory every constructed feature
(rock steps, retaining walls, etc.) and all identified resource impacts (trail braiding, erosion, trampled vegetation, etc.). These baseline
inventories allow CFI to compare the relative conditions of the existing trail network, as well as prioritize future maintenance work and
quantify the amount of work needed to bring a particular trail up to standard and estimate its cost and staff time to do so. This project
helps ensure that limited funding and time are devoted to the trails that most need maintenance and restoration work. Preliminary
estimates of work required and the costs of completing this work are being reviewed, with presentation of a more formal report later in
2014. These assessments will serve as the workplan for needed future trail reconstruction, maintenance and restoration work over the
coming years.

B. Indicate the date you will submit your Final Project Report.

CFI’s field season usually runs from early June through early October depending upon weather and the volume of spring snowpack and
timing of first major fall storms. The Forest Service requires detailed reports to be submitted by November. We should be able to report
on the 2015 field season’s work by calendar year end (i.e. 12/31/2015).
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IV. ORGANIZATIONAL FUNDING & SUPPORT -

A. Detailed Sources of Funding for the Organization

SOURCE OF FUNDS Amount Amount Amount Amount | Estimated Amount
Requested | Awarded | Requested | Awarded Amount Committed
for 2013 in 2013 for 2014 in 2014 Requested | for 2015 (if
for 2015 any)
Government Support
Town of Breckenridge 0 0 $1,000 $1,000 $2,500 0
Town of Dillon 0 0 $1,000 $500 $500 0
Town of Frisco 0 0 $1,000 $0 $500 0
Town of Silverthorne 0 0 $1,000 $500 $500 0
Summit County Government 0 0 0 0 0 0
State Government Sources N/A $198,407 N/A $76,477 N/A
Federal Government Sources N/A $164,626 N/A $138,579 N/A 0
Corporate/Business Support
Multiple corporate donors/partners $85,600 $86,272 $43,100 $41,279 N/A 0
Private Foundation Support
Multiple foundation donors $85,600 $268,142 $236,757 | $102,244 N/A 0
Private Individual Donor Support $250,000 $388,443 $231,500 $84,199 N/A 0
Earned Revenues (i.e., fees for service, etc.
be specific) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other (Please specify)
Interest/Adopt Endowment/Misc $7,951 $1,153 $5,000 $1,044 N/A 0
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDING N/A | $1,107,043 N/A | $445,822 N/A 0

89 of 138




B. In-kind and donated services requested for 2015: Please complete all that apply to your organization.

Donated
Facility Administrative | Professional | Volunteers Products (i.e., Other
Services Services Auction
Items/Prizes)
(Value) (Value) (Value) (Hours) (Value) (Be Specific)

Government Support

Town of Breckenridge

Town of Dillon

Town of Frisco

Town of Silverthorne

Summit County Government

State Government Sources

Federal Government Sources
Corporate/Business Support
Numerous businesses $1,000
Private Foundation Support
Private Individual Donor Support
Value of volunteer labor $18,500
Other (Be Specific)
TOTAL $18,500 $1,000
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V. ATTACHMENTS - please complete the requested information listed below, and attach to the
completed application from above; save as one, complete document, and submit according to the
respective entities instructions.

A-1. Complete funding history of grants received from the organization to which you are applying. Be
specific by year, amount received and cumulative total.

A-2. Detailed current year budget for the entire organization. (Does not apply to government agencies or
the school district.)

A-3. Most recent year-end financial statement (actual vs. budget) and balance sheet for the organization.
Most recent audit is acceptable. (Does not apply to government agencies or the school district.)

A-4. Current year-to-date statement (actual vs. budget) and balance sheet for the organization. (July 31,
2014 or more recent) (Does not apply to government agencies or the school district.)

A-5. Administrative & Fundraising percentage of the organization.

A-6. List of Board of Trustees/Directors including name and occupation of each board member.

A-7. Identify the percentage of Board of Trustees/Directors that contribute financially to the organization
and what percent that is of the organization’s annual budget. Do not include individual giving amounts.

A-8. Organizational Chart (illustrating your administrative structure).

A-9. L.R.S. 990 tax return.

A-10. APPLIES TO FIRST TIME APPLICANTS OR IF L.R.S. STATUS HAS CHANGED - provide
the 501(c)(3) IRS determination letter.
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Attachment A-1

History of Summit County Local Government Grants

2014:

Town of Breckenridge: $1,000
Town of Silverthorne: $500
Town of Dillon: $500

Funding not requested in prior years
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Support and Revenue:
Contributions
Foundations
Corporate
Individual
Government Grants
State Trails
Forest Service
National Forest Foundation
Other
Special Events
Other Income

Total Support and Revenue

Expenses:
Field Expenses and Seasonal Wages
Field Wages - Staff
Development & Marketing
Staff Payroll and Expenses
Other Administrative Expenses
New Vehicle Needs (Trailer + Topper)

Total Expenses

Net

Confidence of funding color coding:
Funding obtained or pledged=100%

Colorado Fourteeners Initiative
2014 Budget

Requests sent or planned to recent past funders=5 $

2/20/2014 4:27 PM
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Summary

Sustainable Peak Stewards Development Programs CFI

Trails Adopt El Diente Bierstadt Holy Cross and Outreach TH Kiosks and Marketing (General) Administrative Total
EEEE s 5750 $ 26,500 $ - $ 10,000 $ 39,300 $ 152,800
$ 22,600 $ 20,500 $ 43,100
$ 6,000 $ 231,500
$ 63,492 $ 3,175 $ 66,667
$ 50,000 $ 7219 $ 74,281 $ 131,500
$ 53,957 $ 30,000 $ 83,957
$ 9,475 $ 7,500 $ 16,975
$ 5,000
$ 2,708 $ 2,708
$ 19,500 $ 92,283 $ 143949 $ 50,000 $ 30,000 $ - $ 10,000 $ 297,800 $ 13,219 $ 77,456 $ 734,207
$ 27,270 $ 69,061 $ 129,148 $ 57,788 $ 35,041 $ 6,910 $ 15,905 $ 341,123
$ 4131 $ 31,542 $ 10,127 $ 9,653 $ 11,883 $ 32,007 $ 1,672 $ 50,940 $ 151,956
$ 41,295 $ 41,295
$ 42,365 $ 60,456 $ 102,821
$ 6,300 $ 17,800 $ 64,246 $ 88,346
$ 5,000 $ 5,000
$ 31,401 $ 100,603 $ 139,276 $ 67,441 $ 46,924 $ 32,007 $ 8,582 $ 94,960 $ 84,645 $ 124,702 $ 730,541
$ (11,901) $ (8,320) $ 4,674 $ (17,441 $ (16,924) $ (32,007) $ 1418 $ 202,840 $ (71,426) $ (47,246) $ 3,666

$ 188,807
295,400
1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Colorado Fourteeners Initiative:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Colorado Fourteeners Initiative (“CFI”),
a not-for-profit organization, which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31,
2013, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

Members:
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants » Colorado Society of Certified Public Accountants

10303 E. Dry Creek Road, Suite 400 ¢ Englewood, CO 80112 e 303 771 0123 e 303 771 0078 fax
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Page -2-

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Colorado Fourteeners Initiative as of December 31, 2013, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Reporting on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the CFI’s December 31, 2012, financial statements, and we expressed
an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated April 22, 2013.
In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year

ended December 31, 2013, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements
from which it has been derived.

JDS Professional Group

April 17, 2014
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COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE

Statement Of Financial Position
As Of December 31, 2013
(With Summarized Financial Information As Of December 31, 2012) Page -3-

2013 2012

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 302,207 $ 225,169

Accounts receivable 61,025 12,948

Promises to give 30,383 115,744

Investments 5,325

Prepaid expenses 11,098 5,081
Total Current Assets 410,038 358,942

Long Term Assets

Property and equipment, net 59,370 81,669
59,370 81,669
TOTAL ASSETS $ 469,408 $ 440,611

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 1,180 $ 4,816
Accrued liabilities 42,617 67,427
Deferred revenue 4,571
Total Current Liabilities 43,797 76,814
Net Assets:
Unrestricted -
Undesignated $ 167494 $ 37,783
Board designated - Reserve Fund 109,996
Total Unrestricted 277,490 37,783
Temporarily restricted 148,121 326,014
Total Net Assets 425,611 363,797
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 469,408 §$ 440,611

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE

Statement Of Activities

For The Year Ended December 31, 2013

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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(With Summarized Financial Information For The Year Ended December 31, 2012) Page -4-
Temporarily 2013 2012
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Support And Revenue:
Contributions $ 473,402 $ 147,636 $ 621,038 $ 541,787
Government grants 335,768 335,768 277,258
Other income 20,210 20,210 10,284
829,380 147,636 977,016 829,329
Net assets released from restrictions-
Satisfaction of program restrictions 325,529 (325,529)
Total Support And Revenue 1,154,909 (177,893) 977,016 829,329
Expenses:
Program Services -
Field projects and education 732,743 732,743 678,229
Supporting Services -
General administration 89,775 89,775 97,856
Fundraising 92,684 92,684 62,416
Total Supporting Services 182,459 182,459 160,272
Total Expenses 915,202 915,202 838,501
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 907 A7) 6lsle A7)
Net Assets, Beginning Of Year 37,783 326,014 363,797 372,969
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 277,490 $ 148,121 $ 425,611 $ 363,797




COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE

Statement Of Cash Flows
For The Year Ended December 31, 2013
(With Summarized Financial Information For The Year Ended December 31, 2012) Page -5-

2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Changes in net assets $ 61,814 $ (9,172)
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 26,933 30,106
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 234
Donated stock (12,773)
Loss on investments 94
Adjusted settlement amount on state trails liability (19,765)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities -
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (48,077) 24,474
Decrease in promises to give 85,361 44,789
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (6,017) 4,048
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (3,636) 4,131
(Decrease) in accrued liabilities (5,045) (5,975)
(Decrease) in deferred revenue (4,571) (72,685)
Net cash provided by operating activities 74,318 19,950
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (4,634) (33,427)
Sales of donated stock 7,354
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 2,720 (33,427)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from notes payable 120,000 35,000
Payments on notes payable (120,000) (35,000)

Net cash provided by financing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS 77,038 (13,477)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning Of Year 225,169 238,646
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 302,207 $ 225,169

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE

Notes To Financial Statements

For The Year Ended December 31, 2013 Page -6-
(1)  Nature Of Organization

2

The Colorado Fourteeners Initiative (“CFI”) began in 1994 as a joint effort of the US Forest Service
and four Colorado-based non-profit organizations involved in mountain recreation and conservation
activities. CFI was incorporated as an independent non-profit organization in Colorado in July 1996.
The mission of CFI is to protect, preserve, restore and enhance the natural integrity of the state’s
14,000-foot peaks through volunteer stewardship and public education. CFI accomplishes its mission
through design, construction and maintenance of sustainably located summit trails, restoration of
damaged alpine terrain and education of Fourteener climbers regarding how they can minimize their
impacts on fragile alpine ecosystems. Revenues are derived primarily through contributions and
government grants.

Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis Of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis Of Presentation

CFl is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently
restricted net assets. As of December 31, 2013, CFI did not have any permanently restricted net
assets.

Use Of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of support and revenue
and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Statement Of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of demand deposits.

Accounts Receivable

CFI uses the allowance method to record uncollectible accounts. The allowance is based on past

experience and on specific analysis of the collectibility of individual accounts receivable.
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COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued) Page -7-

Management expects all accounts receivable will be fully collectible, accordingly, there is no
allowance for doubtful accounts. CFI’s policy is to charge off accounts receivable when collection
of payments thereon is deemed to be improbable.

Promises To Give

Unconditional promises to give are recognized as revenues or gains in the period received, and as
assets, decreases in liabilities, or expenses depending on the form of the benefits received.
Conditional promises to give are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend are
substantially met and the promises become unconditional. Management expects that all promises to
give will be fully collectible, accordingly, there is no allowance for uncollectible promises to give.

Promises to give that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at their net realizable
value. Promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present
value of estimated future cash flows.

Property And Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives ranging from five to ten years. Donated property and equipment are
recorded at their fair market value at the date of receipt. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and
minor replacements are charged to operations and expenditures for major replacements and
betterments that exceed $500 are capitalized.

Fair Value Measurements

CFl follows Fair Value Measurements which among other things requires enhanced disclosures about
investments that are measured and reported at fair value and establishes a framework for measuring
fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under the standard are described below:

Level 1 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets
or liabilities in active markets that CFI has the ability to access.

Level 2 Inputs to the valuation methodology include:
* Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
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COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued) Page -8-

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market
data by correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be
observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used
need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Equities: Valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the individual
securities are traded.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while CFI believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result
in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

In general, investments are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and overall market
volatility risk. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investments, it is reasonably possible
that changes in the values of the investments will occur in the near term and that such changes could
materially affect the investment balances and the amounts reported in the statements of financial
position.

The carrying amount reported in the statements of financial position for cash and equivalents,
accounts receivable, promises to give, prepaid expenses, accounts payable and accrued liabilities
approximate fair value because of the immediate or short-term maturities of these financial
instruments.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted or temporarily restricted support, depending on
the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. Support that is restricted by the donor is reported
as an increase in temporarily restricted net assets. When a restriction expires (that is, when a
stifldtidn time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net
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Notes To Financial Statements (Continued) Page -9-

3

assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions.

Donated Goods and Services

Certain donated services, goods, and facilities that meet the criteria for recognition, are reflected in
the financial statements at fair market value at the time of the donation.

Functional Allocation Of Expenses

The costs of providing various program support and supporting services have been summarized on
a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs are allocated among the
program and supporting services benefitted.

Prior-Year Amounts

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but
not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should
be read in conjunction with CFI’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, from
which the summarized information was derived.

Subsequent Events

CFI has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through April 17, 2014, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued and considered any relevant matters in the preparation
of the financial statements and footnotes.

Tax Exempt Status

CFI has previously received notice from the Internal Revenue Service of exemption from income tax
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, the accompanying financial
statements contain no provision for income taxes. In addition, CFI qualifies for the charitable
contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A) and has been classified as an organization other
than a private foundation under Section 509(a)(1).

CFI follows Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, which requires CFI to determine whether
a tax position (and the related tax benefit) is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination
by the applicable taxing authority, based solely on the technical merits of the position. The tax
benefit to be recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than fifty percent

likely of being realized upon settlement, presuming that the tax position is examined by the
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appropriate taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. During the year
ended December 31, 2013, CFI’s management evaluated its tax positions to determine the existence
of uncertainties, and did not note any matters that would require recognition or which may have an
affect on its tax-exempt status.

CFI is no longer subject to U.S. federal income tax audits on its Form 990 by taxing authorities for
years prior to 2010. The years subsequent to this year contain matters that could be subject to
differing interpretations of applicable tax laws and regulations. Although the outcome of tax audits
is uncertain, CFI believes no issues would arise.

(CY) Property And Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of December 31, 2013:

Office furniture and equipment $ 99,000
Field equipment , 170,441
269,441
Less: accumulated depreciation (210,071)
Net property and equipment $ 59,370

(5) Long Term Debt

CFI has a revolving line of credit with a financial institution with a maximum line of $60,000. The
line of credit bears interest at the prime rate plus 6.75%. As of December 31, 2013, the effective
interest rate was 10% and no amounts were outstanding on the line.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, CFI entered into a note agreement with a private
organization for an amount of $35,000 with a 6% interest rate. The note was repaid prior to year
end.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, CFI entered into a note agreement with a member of the
Board of Directors for an amount of $25,000 with a 6% interest rate. The note was repaid prior to
year end.
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(6) Contingency

(7

(8)

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by such
grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. In that event, CFI may be
required to refund amounts to the federal government.

Operating Lease Commitment

CFI entered into an operating leases for office space for its administrative office. Future minimum
rental payments under this lease as of December 31, 2013, are due as follows:

Year Ended

December 31
2014 $ 26,970
2015 11,359

$ 38,329

For the year ended December 31, 2013, rent expense was $26,956.

Investments and Concentrations Of Credit Risk

CFI’s investments consisted of equities - industrial goods and the fair value hierarchy for that asset
measured at fair value on a recurring basis was at level 1.

CFI’s cash demand deposits are held at financial institutions at which deposits are temporarily insured
up to $250,000 by the FDIC. As of December 31, 2013, CFI’s cash demand deposits did not exceed

this limit.

As of December 31, 2013, 92 %of accounts receivable is due from the State of Colorado Department
of Natural Resources, Division of Parks and Wildlife.
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(9)  Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

(10)

an

Temporarily restricted net assets as of December 31, 2013, consisted of the following:

Adopt-A-Peak $ 9,475
Adopt-A-Peak Intern 54,781
El Diente : 53,957
Mount Shavano Private Land Holding Review 6,000
Other programs 15,408
Marketing 7,500
Time restricted 1,000

$ 148,121

Donated Goods and Services

CFI receives a substantial amount of donated services and expenses by unpaid volunteers. The value
of this contributed time and expense is not reflected in the accompanying financial statements as it
does not meet the requirements for recognition; however, these amounts are estimated based on rates
earned by persons performing similar services as published by an association of volunteer groups
and/or as determined by prevailing labor costs in the respective industry. The value of the donated
services as estimated by CFI was approximately $238,773 and included 10,655 volunteer hours for
the year ended December 31, 2013.

Donated goods and services that met the criteria amount to $29,358 as of December 31, 2013. Of

which, $14,005 was services and $15,353 was goods. The majority of the in-kind is reflected in the
program expenses.

Retirement Plan

During the year ended December 31, 2011, CFI established a defined contribution plan (the “Plan™)
for all employees who receive greater than $5,000 of compensation during the year and have attained
two years of service. Under the terms of the Plan, CFI will match 3% of eligible compensation or
make a 2% discretionary contribution in place of the match. For the year ended December 31, 2013,
CFI made contributions of $8,130 to the Plan.
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3:26 PM
08/12/14
Accrual Basis

Colorado Fourteeners Initiative

Profit & Loss
January through July 2014

Income
Corporate Contributions
Foundation Grants
Individual Contributions
Local Governments
National Forest Foundation
State Trails
Other Income

Total Income

Expense
Development and Marketing
Field Staff Wages and Expenses
Office Expenses
Office Payroll

Total Expense

Net Income
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Actual Budget Variance
$ 44,147.59 $ 32,200.00 $ 11,947.59
$ 45,039.77 $ 94,800.00 $ (49,760.23)
$ 81,158.57 $ 54,000.00 $ 27,158.57
$ 3,800.00 $ - $ 3,800.00
$ 44,688.00 $ 30,000.00 $ 14,688.00
$ 99,812.50 $ 99,812.50
$ 1,043.72 $ 2,708.00 $ (1,664.28)
$ 319,690.15 213,708.00 $ 105,982.15
$ 10,667.39 $ 26,295.00 $ (15,627.61)
$ 198,621.15 $ 210,000.00 $ (11,378.85)
$ 60,174.79 $ 52,000.00 $ 8,174.79
$ 53,214.99 $ 60,000.00 $ (6,785.01)
$ 322,678.32 $ 348,295.00 $ (25,616.68)
$ (2,988.17) $ (134,587.00) $ 131,598.83
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08/12/14
Accrual Basis

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash in Banks
Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets, Net

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2014

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Short Term Note Payable

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity

Retained Earnings

Net Income

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

108 of 138

229,479.34

25,502.77
$ 161,496.36
$ 416,478.47
$ 66,822.36
$ 483,300.83
$ 25,678.11

35,000.00
$ 60,678.11
$ 60,678.11
$ 425,610.89
$ (2,988.17)
$ 422,622.72
$ 483,300.83
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Attachment A-5
Administrative and Fundraising Percentage

For 2013 CFl had an administrative percentage of 12% and a fundraising percentage of 7.6%, resulting in
80.4% of total expenses being devoted to programs.

Note that CFl is rather unique in that field activities are principally focused into a four-month-long
window. This year 10 seasonal employees were hired and a further 16 youth corps crewmembers were
hired for roughly two months. Meanwhile, fundraising and administration functions occur year round
and are performed by the two most senior employees, accentuating the non-programmatic expenses of
the organization.
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Colorado Fourteeners Initiative

A Partnership for Preservation

2014 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Jim Schoettler, Chairman
Entrepreneur
Denver, CO

Hunt Walker, Vice Chairman

Vice President of Land, Sam Gary, Jr. and

Associates
Denver, CO

Tom Barney, Treasurer
CEO, Osprey Packs
Cortez, CO

Lisa Mattis, Secretary

Former Executive Director, Big City
Mountaineers

Denver, CO

Wendy Boutin
Retired, DPC Development Company
Cherry Hills Village, CO

Warren Buettner
President, Crestone Properties, LLC
Silverthorne, CO

Charles Cavness
Principal, Magnolia Minerals Trust
Denver, CO

Steve Dayney
CEO, Senvion Wind Energy Solutions
Denver, CO

Mandy Hughes
Fundraising Consultant
Denver, CO
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John W. Mill

Attorney, Sherman & Howard, LLP

Denver, CO

Nate Palmer

Managing Director,

The PrivateBank and Trust Company
Denver, CO

Laura Tomlinson
Educator, Kent Denver School
Centennial, CO

Marty Zeller
President, Conservation Partners, Inc.
Denver, CO



Attachment A-7
Board of Directors Fundraising

Since 2009 there has been 100 percent participation by CFl Directors in fundraising. In 2012 the Board
passed a resolution requiring that all new and renewing directors give or get a minimum annual
contribution of $1,500. In 2013 CFI’s directors directly gave $45,061 (4.6% of the organization’s budget)
and directly obtained gifts from others totaling $59,866 (6.1%). The direct actions of directors raised
more than 10% of the organization’s budget last year.
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2014 CFI Organizational Chart (August 4, 2014)

Executive Director
Lloyd Athearn

Development and Programs
Coordinator

Morgan Childs

Education/Outreach Sustainable Trails
Coordinator/Interim Field Controller

Peak Stewards Programs Manager Jerry Mack, CPA
Len Shipman (Volunteer) Ben Hanus ,

Patagonia Environmental
Intern

Brian Sargeant
August/September

i i El Diente Peak Trail -a-|
Sustainable Trails Program Mount Bierstadt Trail iente Feak Iral Adopt-a-Peak Volunteer Mount of the Holy Cross

Reconstruction Crew Reconstruction Crew Stewardship Crew Maintenance/Education Crew

Maintenance/Education Leaders
(Seasonal)
Cristina Cultrara
Dylan Barbash Robert Duddy

[GETEELES
CFI Technical Advisors (Seasonal)
(Seasonal)

Eli Allan
Eric Haggstrom

Crew Leader

(Seasonal)
Miriam Venman-Clay

Tom Cronin

Crew Members
(Seasonal)
Chris Houde

8-Person Southwest

8-Person Rocky Mountain Conservation Corps Crew
Youth Corps Crew Rebecca Egan

(Contract to USFS)

Kimberly Appelson Outdoor
Leadership Intern (Seasonal)

Patricia Franco

Adopt-a-Peak Volunteers
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990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax OMB No. 1545-0047
Form Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations) 20 13
Department of the Treasury P Do not enter Social Security numbers on this form as it may be made public. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service P Information about Form 990 and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection
A For the 2013 calendar year, or tax year beginning _and ending
B Check if applicable: C Name of organization D Employer identification number
|| Address change COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE
D Name change Doing Business As 84— 1354844
Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite E  Telephone number
L it reum 1600 JACKSON ST. 352 303-278-7650
D Terminated City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code
D Amended return GOLDEN CO 80401 G Gross receipts$ 970,458
D Application pending F Name and address of principal officer: ] .
LLOYD ATH EARN H(a) Is this a group return for subordlnatesD Yes @ No
1600 JACKSON ST. #352 H(b) Are all subordinates included> | | Yes | | No
GOLDEN CO 80401 If "No," attach a list. (see instructions)
| Tax-exempt status: m 501(c)(3) m 501(c) ( ) 4 (insert no.) m 4947(a)(1) or m 527
J  Website: > WWW - 14ERS - ORG H(c) Group exemption number >
K Form of organization: m Corporation m Trust m Association m Other P> | L Year of formation: 1994 | M _State of legal domicile: CO
Part | Summary
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activites:
g| . TO PROTECT AND PRESERVE THE NATURAL INTEGRITY OF COLORADO®S 14,000 FOOT
| PEAKS THROUGH ACTIVE STEWARDSHIP AND PUBLIC EDUCATION. . ...
g e
8 2 Check this box PD if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
& | 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) 3 18
8| 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line1b) 4 18
:§ 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2013 (Part V, line2a) 5 26
g 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) 6 546
7aTotal unrelated business revenue from Part VI, column (C), line12 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 34 . ... . .. . . i, 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part Vill, lineth) 796,476 942,801
g 9 Program service revenue (Part Vi, line2g) 0
& | 10 Investmentincome (Part VIIl, column (A), lines 3, 4,and 7d) 7,968 -7/
® | 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c,and 11¢) 2,316 20,217
12 Total revenue — add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) ... ... 806 y 760 963 y 011
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines1-3) 0
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line4) 0
$ | 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) 468,391 585,510
2 | 16aProfessional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11¢) 0
lOJ- b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) » 92 3 684 ''''''
W1 17 oOther expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24¢) 347,541 315,687
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line25) 815,932 901,197
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 -9 y 172 61 y 814
Sy Beginning of Current Year End of Year
$5 20 Total assets (PartX, ine 16) ... 440,611 469,408
<3 21 Total liabilities (Part X, lne26) 76,814 43,797
%.% 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 fromline20 . . .. . ... .. . . . . . 363 y 797 425 y 611

Part Il Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

S|gn } Signature of officer | Date
Here } LLOYD ATHEARN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Type or print name and title

Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Check Dif PTIN
Paid LORI B. BAUER, CPA LORI B. BAUER, CPA s 05/01/14 self-employed | P01260252
Preparer Firm's name > JDS PROFESSIONAL GROUP Firm's EIN P 20—8019714
Use Only 10303 E DRY CREEK RD STE 400

Fmsadiess »  ENGLEWOOD, CO 80112 phoneno. 303-771-0123

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) m Yes m No
For Paperwork{Resfutd®n Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 990 (2013)
DAA
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Form 990 (2013) COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844 Page 2
Part Ill Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Il ... ... ... . .. ... . . ... .. ... ... [ ]

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission:

TO PROTECT AND PRESERVE THE NATURAL INTEGRITY OF COLORADO®"S 14,000 FOOT

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 0r 990-E22 [ ] ves [X] No

If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program

services? D Yes @ No

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: ) (Expenses $ 718 738 including grants of$ ) (Revenue $

4d Other program services. (Describe in Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ including grants of$ ) (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expenses P 718 Y 738
DAA 114 of 138 Form 990 (2013)
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Form 990 (2013) COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844 Page 3
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes| No

1 Isthe organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If “Yes,”

complete Schedule A 1| X
2 Isthe organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)? 2 [ X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to

candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Partt 3
4  Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h)

election in effect during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Partin ... 4

5 s the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If "Yes," complete Schedule C,
Part Il 5 X

6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If

“Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part 1 6
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,

the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Partuy 7
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If “Yes,”

complete Schedule D, Part llI 8

9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability; serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or

debt negotiation services? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Parttyv 9
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted
endowments, permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Party 10

11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is “Yes,” then complete Schedule D, Parts VI,
VII, VIII, 1X, or X as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If "Yes,"

complete Schedule D, PartVl 11al X
b Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Partvt -~~~ 11b X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Partvut -~~~ lic X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Partix ...~~~ 11d X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 257 If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X lle X
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 11f | X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If “Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Parts X1 and XIL ... 12a] X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes," and if
the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xl and XIl is optional 12b X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i)? If “Yes,” complete Schedulee 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?> l4a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Partsland v~~~ 14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Partsiandtv.. ...~ 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts litandtv. .~~~ 16 X
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part | (see instructions) 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on
Part VIII, lines 1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Partut -~ 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a?
If"Yes," complete Schedule G, Part ll ... 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If “Yes,” complete ScheduleH 20a X
b If “Yes” to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to thisreturn? ...................... ... 20b

Form 990 (2013)
DAA 115 of 138
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Form 990 (2013) COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844 Page 4
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)
Yes | No
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If “Yes,” complete Schedule |, Partstandtt -~~~ 21 X
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to individuals in the United States
on Part IX, column (A), line 2? If "Yes," complete Schedule |, Parts landt-~~~~~~~~~ 22
23 Did the organization answer “Yes” to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the
organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If "Yes," complete Schedule J 23 X
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? If “Yes,” answer lines 24b
through 24d and complete Schedule K. If “No,” go to line25a 24a X
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exemptbonds? 24c
d Did the organization act as an “on behalf of” issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit transaction
with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Parti 25a X
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ?
If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part| 25b X
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any
current or former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or
disqualified persons? If so, complete Schedule L, Partil 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee,
substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled
entity or family member of any of these persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partut -~~~ 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L,
Part 1V instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Parttyv 28a| X
b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes," complete
Schedule L’ U 28b
¢ An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof)
was an officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partiv. ...~ 28c X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedulem 29 | X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conservation contributions? If “Yes,” complete ScheduleM 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If “Yes,” complete Schedule N,
Partl . 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes,"
complete Schedule N, Partll 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part1 .~~~ 33 X
34  Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Parts II, Il
orlV,andPartV linel 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(23)?> ...~ 35a X
b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a
controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, PartV, line2 35b
36  Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable
related organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part Vv, line2 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R,
PartVl 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and
19? Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O ... ... ... .. .. . 38 | X

DAA
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Form 990 (2013) COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V

la

2a

3a

4a

ba

6a

oOQ 0

12a

13

1l4a

Yes| No
Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -O- if not applicable =~~~ la| S
Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable =~ | O
Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? 1c | X
Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return | 2a 26
If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 2b | X
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions)
Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? 3a X
If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No” to line 3b, provide an explanation in Scheduleo0 3b
At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority
over, a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial
ACCOUNY? 4 X
If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country: B
See instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22.1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts.
Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year> 5a X
Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b X
If “Yes” to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T2 5c
Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?> .~ 6a X
If “Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not tax deductible? 6b
Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor? 7a X
If “Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? = 7b
Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was
required to file FOrm 82827 7c
If “Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year | 7d |
Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? 7e X
Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? 7f X
If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? 79
If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h
Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section 509(a)(3) supporting
organizations. Did the supporting organization, or a donor advised fund maintained by a sponsoring
organization, have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8
Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? 9a
Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 9b
Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part vill, line12 10a
Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, for public use of club facilites =~~~ 10b
Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
Gross income from members or shareholders 1la
Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due or received from them.) 11b
Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 12a
If “Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year ... ... ... | 12b |
Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? 13a
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans 13b
Enter the amount Of reserves on hand ............................................................ 13C
Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the taxyear? 14a X
If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an explanation in Schedule O ...................... 14b
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Form 990 (2013) COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844 Page 6
Part VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No"
response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line inthis Part VI . ... ... . . . . . . .. .. . . . . . . . . .. ... RL
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes| No
la Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year 1a| 18
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar
committee, explain in Schedule O.
b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent | 18
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 2 X
3  Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct
supervision of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? 3 X
4  Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 X
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? 5 X
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? 6 X
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint
one or more members of the governing body? 7a X
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? 7b X
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the followfing:
a Thegoveringbody? ga| X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? 8b | X
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organization’s mailing address? If “Yes,” provide the names and addressesin Schedule O ................................. 9 X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes| No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? .................... 10b
1la Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? 11a] X
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No,” go to linea23 ...~~~ 12a] X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? | 12b X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If “Yes,”
describe in Schedule O how thiswas done 12¢| X
13  Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? 13 | X
14  Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14 | X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management officiad 15a| X
b Other officers or key employees of the organization . 15b| X
If “Yes” to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement
with a taxable entity during the year? 16a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization's exempt status with respect to SUCh arrangemMENtS? . . . ... ...ttt 16b

Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be fle®CO
18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only)
available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
D Own website D Another's website @ Upon request D Other (explain in Schedule O)
19 Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and
financial statements available to the public during the tax year.

20 State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the
organization: » THE ORGANIZATION 1600 JACKSON ST. #352
GOLDEN CO 80401 303-278-7650
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Form 990 (2013) COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844 Page 7
Part VIl Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
la Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.
o List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
o List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee."

e List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.

o List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

o List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest
compensated employees; and former such persons.

D Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organizations compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A (8) © (D) (B) (]
Name and Title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per (do not check more than one compensation compensation from amount of
week box, unless person is both an from related other
(list any officer and a director/trustee) the organizations compensation
hours for SSTSsTo = ez T organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from tht_a
related a2l | = n) _gcg_ Q (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations |3 x| E [ 8 | o 23 3 and related
below dotted 8: 5| S ‘3 8 § - organizations
line) g ; § ??,
@NATE PALMER
USRI 3.00
CHAIR 0.00 [X X 0 0 0
2 WARREN BUETTNER
TR I 1.00
DIRECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0 0
3)KATHLEEN BRENNAN
TR I 1.00
DIRECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0 0
@ STEVE DAYNEY
TR I 1.00
DIRECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0 0
e HUNT WALKER
TN 1.00
VICE CHAIR 0.00 [X X 0 0 0
©WENDY BOUTIN
TR I 1.00
DIRECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0 0
7 NORBERT KLEBL
TR I 1.00
DIRECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0 0
©® CHARLES CAVNESS
TR I 1.00
DIRECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0 0
©JOHN MILL
TR I 1.00
DIRECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0 0
@o)BILL MIDDLEBROQK
TR I 1.00
DIRECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0 0
11)JAMES SCHOETTLER
RN 3.00
VICE-CHAIR/CHAIR 0.00 [X X 0 0 0
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Form 990 (2013) COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844 Page 8
Part VII Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A) (8) © (D) (E) (]
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per (do not check more than one compensation compensation from amount of
week box, unless person is both an from related other
(list any officer and a director/trustee) the organizations compensation
hours for —T— organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related ig__ 2 gon E %L%:_ J (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
line) “g 2 % ?%
@2)ANNE VICKERY
ST 1.00
DIRECTOR 0.00 | X 0 0 0
@3)STEVE SHERWOOD
ST O 1.00
DIRECTOR 0.00 | X 0 0 0
14 MANDY HUGHES
ST O 1.00
DIRECTOR 0.00 | X 0 0 0
@5 LISA MATTIS
TR 3.00
SECRETARY 0.00 | X X 0 0 0
@6)MARTY ZELLER
ST O 1.00
DIRECTOR 0.00 | X 0 0 0
@7 GERALD ANDERSON
TR O 3.00
TREASURER 0.00 | X X 0 0 0
18)TOM BARNEY
TR O 1.00
TREASURER 0.00 | X X 0 0 0
@9 LLOYD ATHEARN
TSR I 40.00
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 0.00 X 77,722 0 8,794
Ib Sub-total ... > 77,722 8,794
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A ... ... .. | 4
d Total (add linesdbandc) ... ... ... ... ... > (7,722 8,794

2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 in
reportable compensation from the organization

Yes| No

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual 3 X

4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,0007? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
INGIVIUBL 1 X

5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual

for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J forsuchperson . .................................... .. 5 X
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.
A B C
Name and b(us)iness address Descriptic(m)of services Comr(Jer)mation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who
receivetPfhofd #tan $100,000 of compensation from the organization 0

DAA Form 990 (2013
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Form 990 (2013) COLORADO FOURTEENERS

INITIATIVE

84-1354844

Part VIIl  Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIl ... ... ... []
() (8) © (D)
Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue
exempt business excluded from tax
function revenue under sections
0 em revenue 512-514
%g la Federated campaigns la 4,442
Og b Membershipdues 1b
£<| c Fundraising events 1c
GE d Related organizations 1d
g‘% € Govemment grants (contributions) le 335 ) 768
-S 5 f  All other contributions, gifts, grants,
E*’C—' and similar amounts not included above 1f 602 , 501
Eg g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f: $ 28, 126
S8l h Total. Add lines 1a=1f ........coovviriiiiiiiiiii, > 942,801
é Busn. Code
e 2a
& ............................................
] b
L
Glod
Sl e
1S3 f All other program service revenue . .. ... ..
o g Total. Addlines2a—2f ............................. | 4
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest,
and other similar amounts) > 87 87
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceed®
5 Royalties ... .. ..o >
(i) Real (i) Personal
6a Gross rents
b Less: rental exps.
C Rentalinc. or (loss]
d Netrentalincomeor (10SS) ......................... >
7a ggzso"f"zs:g:sf'o” (i) Securities (ii) Other
other than inventol 7 ) 353
b Less: cost or other
basis & sales exps 7 ) 447
¢ Gain or (loss -94
d Netgainor (I0SS) ..., > -94 -94
© 8a Gross income from fundraising events
§|  (otincudings
é of contributions reported on line 1c).
5 See PartIV,lne18 a
= | b Less:directexpenses b
© Net income or (loss) from fundraising events . ... .. 4
9a Gross income from gaming activities.
SeePartIV,lne19 a
b Less: direct expenses b
¢ Netincome or (loss) from gaming activities ....... 4
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances a
Less: cost of goods sold b
Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory ....... >
Miscellaneous Revenue Busn. Code
11a  OTHER INCOME . . 20,217 20,217
b ...........................................
c C et e e e st e st e e e e e
d Allotherrevenue . .. ... ...................
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d | 4 20,217
12 Total revenue. See instructions. .................. > 963,011 20,217 -7
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Form 990 (2013)

COLORADO FOURTEENERS

INITIATIVE

84-1354844

Part 1X

Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, N (A) B) (©) D)
otal expenses Program service Management and Fundraising
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to governments and
organizations in the U.S. See Part IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in
the U.S. See Part IV, line22
3 Grants and other assistance to governments
organizations, and individuals outside the
US. See Part IV, lines15and 16
4 Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees 86,516 66,419 10,483 9,614
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)
7 Other salaries and wages 435,580 342,942 43,096 49,542
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 5,444 4,179 660 605
9 Other employee benefits 20,781 15,954 2,518 2,309
10 Payrolltaxes 37,189 28,581 4,471 4,137
11 Fees for services (non-employees):
a Management
b legal
c Accounting 8,900 8,900
d Lobbying
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
f Investment managementfees
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule 0.) 67 5 672 67 5 000 672
12 Advertising and promotion 19,566 14,844 4,722
13 Office expenses 5,930 909 3,829 1,192
14 Information technology = 12,637 10,324 1,107 1,206
15 Royaltes
16 Occupancy 27,676 21,247 3,354 3,075
17 Travel 5,793 3,636 592 1,565
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expensgs
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 555 395 160
20 Interest 1,236 1,236
21 Paymentsto affiliates
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 26 oy 933 20 oy 676 3 y 265 2 y 992
23 Insurance 18,195 12,139 4,675 1,381
24 Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered
above (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.)
a  FIELD EXPENSES 108,850 104,702 4,148
b . MERCHANDISE ~ 3,768 141 3,627
¢ . VOLUNTEER COSTS 3,675 3,675
d . CREDIT CARD FEES 1,932 1,932
e All other expenses 2 9 369 975 917 477
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 901 y 197 718 y 738 89 y 775 92 y 684

26

Joint costs. Complete this line only if the
organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation. Check here B | if

following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) ............
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Form 990 (2013) COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844 Page 11
Part X Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X . . TL
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interestbearing 2,783| 1 2,179
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 222,386| 2 300,028
3 Pledges and grants receivable,net 115,744 3 30,383
4 Accounts receivable, net 12,948 4 61,025
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors,
trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees.
Complete Partll of Schedule L 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under sectiof
4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing employers and
sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees' beneficiary
2] organizations (see instructions). Complete Part Il of SchedulelL 6
8| 7 Nowesand loansreceivable, et :
< 8 Inventorles for Sale OF USe 8
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 5,081 o 11,098
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or
other basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D ==~ 10a 269,440
b Less: accumulated depreciation 10b 210,070 81,669 10c 59,370
11 Investments—publicly traded securites 11 5,325
12 Investments—other securities. See Part IV, line1z 12
13 Investments—program-related. See Part 1V, line11 13
14 Intangible assets 14
15 Other assets. See Part IV' line 11 15
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equalline 34) .. ......... ... ... ........ 440 5 611 16 469 5 408
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 72,243| 17 43,797
18 Grantspayable 18
19 Deferredrevenue 4,571 19
20 Tax-exemptbond liabilities 20
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
# 122 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors,
g trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, and
3 disqualified persons. Complete Part Il of Scheduler 22
—' |23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third partes 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D . 25
26 _Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 ..\ oo 76,814 26 43,797
" Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here }@ and
§ complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
5|27 Unrestricted netassets 37,783| 27 277,490
g 28 Temporarily restricted netassets 326,014 28 148,121
S |29 Permanently restricted netassets 29
"'; Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here )D and
S, complete lines 30 through 34.
§ 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 30
&£ |31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipmentfund 31
g 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
33 Total net assets or fund balances 363,797| 33 425,611
34 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ......................................... 440 oy 611| 34 469 y 408
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Form 990 (2013) COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844 Page 12
Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI ... . . . . . . . . . . . . .
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 1 963,011
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line25) 2 901,197
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 fromline1 3 61,814
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, coumn (A 4 363,797
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments ... 5
6 Donated SerVICeS and use Of faCIIItles ............................................................................... 6
7 Investmentexpenses 7
8  Prior period adjustments 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Scheduleoy) 9
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line
33, c0Umn (B)) 10 425,611
Part XIl  Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII .. ... .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. ... D
Yes| No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: D Cash @ Accrual D Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain in
Schedule O.
2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
D Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 20 | X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
@ Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis
c If“Yes” to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight
of the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c | X
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O.
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in
the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1332 3a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the
required audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits. ..................... 3b
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SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support OME No. 1545.0047
(Form 990 or 990-E2) Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 20 13
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
b P Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
epartment of the Treasury i
Internal Revenue Service » Information about Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844

Part |

Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 11, check only one box.)

1]

X< LT O LI

© oo

10
11

1]

A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E.)

A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's name,
City, and State:
An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part Il.)

A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public

described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part 11.)

A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross

receipts from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its

support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses

acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Ill.)

An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the

purposes of one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section

509(a)(3). Check the box that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 11e through 11h.

a D Type | b D Type Il [ D Type llI-Functionally integrated d D Type llI-Non-functionally integrated
By checking this box, | certify that the organization is not controlled directly or indirectly by one or more disqualified persons

other than foundation managers and other than one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1)

or section 509(a)(2).

f If the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type I, or Type Il supporting
organization, check this box D
g Since August 17, 2006, has the organization accepted any gift or contribution from any of the
following persons?
(i) A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (ii) and Yes [ No
(iii) below, the governing body of the supported organization? 11g(i)
(ii) A family member of a person described in (i) above? 11g(ii)
(iif) A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (i) or (i) above? 11g(iii
h Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).
(i) Name of supported (i) EIN (iii) Type of organization (iv) Is the organization | (v) Did you notify (vi) Is the (vii) Amount of monetary
organization (described on lines 1-9 in col. (i) listed in your | the organization in  forganization in col. support
above or IRC section governing document? | ol (i) of your (i) organized in the
(see instructions)) support? us.?
Yes No Yes No Yes No
(A)
(B)
©)
(D)
(B)
Total
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013

Form 990 or 990-EZ.
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2013 COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844

Page 2

Part Il

Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under

Part lll. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part lll.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) 2013 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")
2  Taxrevenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf
3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge
4 Total. Add lines 1 through3
5  The portion of total contributions by
each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shownonline 11, column (f)
6  Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4.
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) 2013 (f) Total
7  Amounts fromline4
8 Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties and income from similar
SOUrCes .. ... ...
9 Netincome from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
isregularly carriedon .............. ...
10  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(ExplaininPartIV.) ...................
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) | 12
13  First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and StOP NEre . oo\ oo > ||
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2013 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column () 14 %
15 Public support percentage from 2012 Schedule A, Partll, line14 15 %
16a 33 1/3% support test—2013. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaton | 4 D
b 33 1/3% support test—2012. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more,
check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaton > D
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2013. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is
10% or more, and if the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part IV how the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization > [ ]
b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2012. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here.
Explain in Part IV how the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly
supported organization > D
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see

instructions

> [ ]

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2013 COLORADO FOURTEENERS

INITIATIVE 84-1354844

Page 3

Part Ill

Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 9 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il.
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part I1.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) »

1

7a

c
8

(a) 2009

(b) 2010

(c) 2011 (d) 2012

(e) 2013

(f) Total

Gifts, grants, contributions, and membershi
fees received. (Do not include any "unusual
grants.") ...

511,131

483,994

844,479 816,202

942,801

3,598,607

Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is related to the
organization’s tax-exempt purpose

Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrelated trade or business under section 513

Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf

The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge

Total. Add lines 1 through 5

511,131

483,994

844,479 816,202

942,801

3,598,607

Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualified persons

Amounts included on lines 2 and 3

received from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year

Add lines7aand7b

Public support (Subtract line 7c from
line 6.)

3,598,607

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) »

9
10a

11

12

13

14

(a) 2009

(b) 2010

(c) 2011 (d) 2012

(e) 2013

(f) Total

Amounts from line 6

511,131

483,994

844,479 816,202

942,801

3,598,607

Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royalties and income from similar sources . .

33

34

44 51

87

249

Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

Add lines 10a and 10b

33

34

44 51

87

249

Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b, whether
or not the business is regularly carried on . .

Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part IV.)

1,075

17,870

1,434 2,316

20,217

42,912

Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11,

and 12.)

512,239

501,898

845,957 818,569

963,105

3,641,768

First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and stop here

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

15 Public support percentage for 2013 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f) 15 98.81%
16 Public support percentage from 2012 Schedule A, Partlil, line 15 ....................oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 16 99.26%
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2013 (line 10c, column (f) divided by line 13, column () . 17 %
18 Investmentincome percentage from 2012 Schedule A, Part Ill, linet7 18 %
19a 33 1/3% support tests—2013. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line

17 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaton > @

b 33 1/3% support tests—2012. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and

line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization > D

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ... ... ... . > m

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2013 COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844 Page 4
Part IV  Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10; Part Il, line 17a or 17b; and
Part I, line 12. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions).

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements OMB No. 15450047
(Form 990) P Complete if the organization answered “Yes,” to Form 990, 2013
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 114, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.

Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service » Information about Schedule D (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844

Part | Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.
(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

1 Total numberatendofyear

2 Aggregate contributions to (during year)

3 Aggregate grants from (duringyear)

4 Aggregate value atend ofyear

5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised

funds are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control> D Yes D No
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used

only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose

conferring impermissible private benefit? ... . ... ... | I ves [ I No
Part Il Conservation Easements.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 7.
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) D Preservation of an historically important land area

D Protection of natural habitat D Preservation of a certified historic structure

D Preservation of open space
2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation

easement on the last day of the tax year. Lield at the End of the Tax Year
a TOtaI number Of Conservatlon easements ....................................................................... 2a
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure includedin(a) .~ 2c
d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 8/17/06, and not on a
historic structure listed in the National Register 2d
3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the
tax year P

5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds?

>
7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
>
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)
() and section 170(M)@)B))? ... [ ] ves [ ] No

9 In Part Xlll, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the
organization’s accounting for conservation easements.

Part Ill Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

la If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of
public service, provide, in Part XllI, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of
public service, provide the following amounts relating to these items:

(i) Revenues included in Form 990, Part VI, line 1 > 3

(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X > 3

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:
a Revenues included in Form 990, Part VI, line 1 > 3

b _Assets included in FOrm 990, Part X . . ... ..., > 3
For PaperwadgRedsggtion Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
DAA
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2013 COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844 Page 2
Part 11l Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply):

a D Public exhibition d D Loan or exchange programs
b D Scholarly research e D Other
c D Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part
XIII.
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? . ... ... ... ... ..... ... .. D Yes D No
Part IV Escrow and Custodial Arrangements.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form
990, Part X, line 21.
la Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not
included on Form 990, Part X? D Yes D No

b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIIl and complete the following table:
Amount
¢ Beginningbalance lc
d Additions during the Year | 1d
e Distributions during the year le
fOEnding balance 1f _
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line21? D Yes | | No
b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIll. Check here if the explanation has been provided in Part XIIl . . . . . ... . .. ... .. ... ...
Part V Endowment Funds.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back (d) Three years back (e) Four years back
la Beginning of year balance
b ContrIbUtlons ..........................
¢ Net investment earnings, gains, and
Iosses .................................
Grants or scholarships
Other expenditures for facilities and
programs
Administrative expenses
g Endofyearbalance .. .. .. . .
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment » %
b Permanentendowment®» %
¢ Temporarily restricted endowment» %
The percentages in lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by: Yes | No
() unrelated Organizations 3a(i)
(ii) related Organizations | 3a(ii)
b If “Yes” to 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on ScheduleR? ..~~~ 3b

4 Describe in Part XIlll the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.
Part VI  Land, Buildings, and Equipment.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other basis (b) Cost or other basis (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
(investment) (other) depreciation

la Land .......................................
b Buildings
c Leasehold improvements =~

d Equipment 269 9 440 210 9 070 59 9 370
eOther .. ..............oooooooiiiiiiiiiii...

Total. Add lines 1a through le. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10(c).) .. .. . .. .. . .. .. . . . > 59,370

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2013  COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844 Page 3
Part VII  Investments—Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:

(including name of security) Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives

(3) Other

S PP P PSP PPPPPRITIS
B
e

B )PP
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12.) p»

Part VIl Investments—Program Related.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:

Cost or end-of-year market value

1)
(2
©)]
4)
()
(6)
(1)
8
9
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.) p»
Part IX Other Assets.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description (b) Book value

1)

2

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

)

(8)

9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 15.)

Part X Other Liabilities.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X,
line 25.

1. (a) Description of liability (b) Book value

(1) Federal income taxes

2

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

)

(8)

9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 25.) p
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XllII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the
organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740). Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII . ... rL
DAA 131 of 138 Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2013 COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844 Page 4

Part XI  Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 1 977 2 016
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:

a Netunrealized gains on investments 2a

b Donated services and use of facilites 2b 14 9 005

€ Recoveries of prioryeargrants 2¢

d Other (Describe inPart XIIL) 2d

e Addlines 2athrough 2d ... 2e 14,005
3 Subtractline 2e fromline 1 ... 3 963,011
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line7b 4a

b Other (Describe in Part XIIL) ... 4b

C Add Ilnes 4a and 4b .................................................................................................. 40

5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 12.) ... . . . .. . ... ... ... 5 963,011

Part XIl Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1 915 2 202
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services and use of facilites 2a 14 9 005

b Prioryearadjustments 2b

C Other |OSSGS ......................................................................... 2C

d Other (Describe in Part XIIL) 2d

e Addlines 2athrough 2d . ... 2e 14,005
3 Subtractline 2e from line 1 ... 3 901,197
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line7b 4a

b Other (Describe in Part XIIL) ... 4b

C Add Ilnes 4a and 4b .................................................................................................. 4C

5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.) . ... . .. ... .. ... ... ... ... ... 5 901,197

Part Xlll Supplemental Information

Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line
2; Part Xl, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

PART X - FIN 48 FOOTNOTE

AUTHORITY, BASED SOLELY ON THE TECHNICAL MERITS OF THE POSITION. THE TAX

BENEFIT TO BE RECOGNIZED 1S MEASURED AS THE LARGEST AMOUNT OF BENEFIT THAT

PRESUMING THAT THE TAX POSITION IS EXAMINED BY THE APPROPRIATE TAXING

AUTHORITY THAT HAS FULL KNOWLEDGE OF ALL RELEVANT INFORMATION. ~DURING THE

+32of+38 Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2013 COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844 Page 5

Part Xlll  Supplemental Information (continued)

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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SCHEDULE L Transactions With Interested Persons OMB No. 1545-0047
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) > Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 25a, 25b, 26, 27, 28a,
28b, or 28c, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or 40b. 2 O 13
Department of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. P See separate instructions. Open To Public
Internal Revenue Service }Information about Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844
Part | Excess Benefit Transactions (section 501(c)(3) and section 501(c)(4) organizations only).
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 25a or 25b, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 40b.
(b) Relationship between disqualified person and (d) Corrected?
1 (a) Name of disqualified person o (c) Description of transaction
organization Yes No
1)
)
©)
(4)
(5)
(6)
2 Enter the amount of tax incurred by the organization managers or disqualified persons during the year
UNder SECON 4958 ... o > s
3 Enter the amount of tax, if any, on line 2, above, reimbursed by the organizaton > $
Part Il Loans to and/or From Interested Persons.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or Form 990, Part IV, line 26; or if the

organization reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 5, 6, or 22.
(a) Name of interested person (b) Relationship | (c) Purpose of [d) Loan td (e) Original (f) Balance due  |(g) In default?[(h) Approved| (i) Written
with organization loan or from thel principal amount by board or | agreement?
org.? committee?

To [From Yes | No |Yes | No [Yes | No

Part Ill Grants or Assistance Benefiting Interested Persons.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 27.

(a) Name of interested person (b) Relationship between interested [c) Amount of assistanc§  (d) Type of assistance (e) Purpose of assistance
person and the organization

1)
2)
)
)
)
)
)
)
9)

(10)
For PaperwarigRedggtion Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013 Page 2
Part IV  Business Transactions Involving Interested Persons.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 28a, 28b, or 28c.

(a) Name of interested person (b) Relationship between (c) Amount of (d) Description of transaction (e)()?gglng

interested person and the transaction revenues?
organization Yes | No

1) BILL MIDDLEBROOK BOARD MEMBER 25,000] ST LOAN TO ORG. X

Part V Supplemental Information
Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule L (see instructions).

SCHEDULE L, PART V - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
DURING THE YEAR THE BOARD MEMBER LENT THE ORGANIZATION $25,000 AT 6%
INTEREST AND THE ORGANIZATION PAID IN FULL BEFORE YEAR END.

Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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SCHEDULE M
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury

Noncash Contributions

| 2 Complete if the organizations answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part 1V, lines 29 or 30.

P Attach to Form 990.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2013

Open To Public

Internal Revenue Service P Information about Schedule M (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844
Part | Types of Property
(a) (o) © @
Check if Number of contributions or Noncash contribution Method of determining
amounts reported on
applicable items contributed Form 990, Part VIII, line 1g noncash contribution amounts
1 Art—Worksofart =~~~
2 Art—Historical treasures
3 Art—Fractional interests
4 Books and publications
5 Clothing and household
goods .
6 Cars and other vehicles
7 Boatsandplanes
8 Intellectual property
9 Securities— Publicly traded X 5 12,773 FMV
10  Securities— Closely held stock
11  Securities — Partnership, LLC,
or trustinterests
12 Securities— Miscellaneous
13 Qualified conservation
contribution — Historic
StrUCtureS ........................
14  Qualified conservation
contribution — Other
15 Real estate —Residential =~
16 Real estate —Commercial
17 Real estate —Other
18 Collectibles
19 Foodinventory
20  Drugs and medical supplies
21 Texidermy
22  Historical artifacts
23  Scientific specimens
24  Archeological artifacts =~~~
25  Other »( EQUIPMENT )X [ 13 15,353 FMV
26 Other®( ... )
27 Other>(_ ... )
28 Other I )

29  Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions for
which the organization completed Form 8283, Part IV, Donee Acknowledgement

30a

29

During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part |, lines 1 - 28, that

it must hold for at least three years from the date of the initial contribution, and which is not required to be
used for exempt purposes for the entire holding period?

b If “Yes,” describe the arrangement in Part II.
31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any non-standard

contributions?

Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash

32a
contributions?
b If “Yes,” describe in Part Il.

33 If the organization did not report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (a) is checked,

describe in Part Il.

Yes | No
30a X
31 | X
32a X

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.
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schedule M (Form 990) 20139 COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844 Page 2
Part Il Supplemental Information. Provide the information required by Part I, lines 30b, 32b, and 33, and whether
the organization is reporting in Part I, column (b), the number of contributions, the number of items received,
or a combination of both. Also complete this part for any additional information.

Schedule M (Form 990) (2013)
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ QAR M oot
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2013
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Information about Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form99d. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
COLORADO FOURTEENERS INITIATIVE 84-1354844

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 11B - ORGANIZATION®"S PROCESS TO REVIEW FORM 990

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 12C - ENFORCEMENT OF CONFLICTS POLICY .
FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 15A - COMPENSATION PROCESS FOR TOP OFFICIAL
THE ORGANIZATION PAID THE ED IN THE PAST AND USING COMPARABLES FROM THE

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 15B - COMPENSATION PROCESS FOR OFFICERS

EMPLOYEE SALARY REVIEWS ARE BASED ON CNP SALARY SURVEYS, INFO OBTAINED FROM
FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 19 - GOVERNING DOCUMENTS DISCLOSURE EXPLANATION

For PaperworigRedggtion Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2013)
DAA
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